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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT = E#&

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director”), | am
pleased to present to shareholders the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2021.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group still focused on our
principal businesses of the environmental and cleaning services and
the money lending business and recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$19.2 million attributable to the owners of the Group as compared to
a net loss of approximately HK$36.7 million attributable to the owners of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CLEANING BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Our environmental and cleaning business in Hong Kong, being our major
business segment, was facing a challenging and difficult market due to
(i) the fierce competition in the pricing; (i) the intense labor supply; and
(iiiy decline in the price and service volume from some of our customers
in the commercial, the transportation and the hotel sectors of which the
businesses have been severely affected by the worldwide spreading of
the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic. With a view of such
difficult time for all businesses in Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (HKSAR) Government (the “Government”) has
launched the Employment Support Scheme (the “ESS”) to provide an
one-off limited financial subsidy to employers to pay part of the salaries
of their employees for the months from June 2020 to November 2020.
Under the ESS, the Group has obtained a subsidy of approximately
HK$24.5 million for our employees under the environmental and cleaning
business in Hong Kong for the period from July to November 2020 which
has been recorded as other income during the year. As a result, the net
profit (excluding the one-off subsidy from the ESS) from the environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong decreased by approximately HK$2.9
million for the year.

Nevertheless, we have been taking various strategies including
taking more proactive approach to gain additional market share in
the commercial and the residential sectors and the revenue from
the environmental and cleaning services in Hong Kong increased by
approximately HK$6.3 million for the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND CLEANING BUSINESS IN THE
PRC

The environmental and cleaning business in Shanghai, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “Shanghai Operations”) remains at the
growth stage. The Shanghai Operations obtained several cleaning service
contracts and recorded an increase in the revenue of approximately
HK$7.7 million for the year and the net profit from the Shanghai
Operations increased by approximately HK$1.4 million for the year. We
will continue to take a more proactive market approach to penetrate
into the PRC market. Together with the extensive business network and
operating experience possessed by the existing management of the
Shanghai Operations, the financial support made by the Group and the
management and operating skills provided by our environmental and
cleaning services in Hong Kong, the Shanghai Operations is believed to
be another major source of income and profit of the Group in the coming
financial years.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

The economy in Hong Kong and the PRC have been challenging for all
businesses with the prolonged Sino-US trade tensions, a further struck by
the persistent social unrests in Hong Kong and the worldwide spreading
of COVID-19. Amid such negative factors, some of our borrowers under
the money lending business have been severely affected and are in
sudden financial difficulties, and therefore have defaulted on repayment
of their loans and interests on schedules. Therefore, the Group has
further recognized impairment loss of approximately HK$9.1 million (the
“Impairment Loss”) on these past due loans and interest receivables from
such borrowers during the year specifically. Nevertheless, the Group has
been taking actions, including but not limited to legal proceedings against
these borrowers, to recover the loan principals, interests and all other
related recovery costs incurred.
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With such negative factors, the operating and economic environment
in Hong Kong and the PRC is expected to remain challenging and
unstable for all businesses in the coming year. In view of such uncertain
and negative economic outlook, the Group will pursue opportunities
and growth in a cautious manner with a high standard of risk and credit
management which ensures that the existing loans portfolio and new
loans granted by the Group are carefully assessed and controlled in
accordance with the Group’s stringent credit policies.

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG

The market prices and sentiment of the commercial properties in Hong
Kong has been gradually and slightly rebounding since early 2021. As a
result, a revaluation gain of approximately HK$3.3 million on the Group’s
commercial properties is recorded based on the independent valuation as
at 30 June 2021.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to
our valued customers, business partners, and shareholders for their
persistent support, and express my appreciation to the management
team and employees for their valuable contribution to the development of
the Group. Finally, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to the
officers of Stock Exchange for their guidance.

Yu Shaoheng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

28 September 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Environmental and Cleaning Services

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of environmental
services in Hong Kong and the PRC, which include the provision of
cleaning and related services for (i) public area and office cleaning
services which involve cleaning of public areas, carpets, floors, toilets,
changing rooms, lifts and escalators and emptying of garbage bins at
commercial buildings and their tenants, residential complexes, shopping
arcades, hotels and public transport facilities such as airport, ferries,
ferry terminal, cargo and logistics centre and depots; (ii) overnight
kitchen cleaning services mainly at private club and hotels; (i) external
wall and window cleaning services; (iv) stonefloor maintenance and
restoration services; (v) pest control and fumigation services; (vi) waste
management and disposal solutions which mainly involve collection,
transportation and disposal of household waste, construction waste and
trade waste and sales of recyclable waste such as paper, metal and
plastic waste collected during our operations; (vi) housekeeping services
where we provide housekeeping services to carry out professional daily
housekeeping and cleaning services at local boutique hotels, hostels
and serviced apartments; (vii) secure and confidential waste destruction
for commercial clients; (ix) sanitation solution for yacht; (x) cleaning and
waste management solution for renovated apartment; and (xi) airline
catering support services.

Money Lending Business

The Group has conducted its money lending business in Hong Kong
under the money lenders licences since 2017. During the year, the Group
has also developed its money lending business in the PRC.

Investments in Financial Assets

During the period, the Group invested in financial assets classified as the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which composed of
only the shares of companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong

Compared to the revenue of approximately HK$300.6 million for the
year ended 30 June 2020, the Group’s revenue from the environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong increased by approximately HK$6.3
million to approximately HK$306.9 million for the year ended 30 June
2021.

Revenue by Service Sector

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by different
sectors which reflect the target clients of our environmental and cleaning
services in Hong Kong:

Year ended
30 June 2021
BE-ZE-—F
NA=THLEE

HK$’000
FET
Commercial (EES 128,457
Residential x= 110,950
Hospitality BE 12,903
Transportation By 37,297
Others Hith 17,253

306,860

Most commercial contracts are for the provision of cleaning and related
services at commercial buildings where customers traditionally demand a
higher service quality and are also willing to pay a premium price. Aimost
all of the commercial contracts enable the Group to provide additional
services for the tenants in the tenanted area of the buildings with
contracts on a regular, ad-hoc or one-off basis which further enhance our
revenue stream. The Group succeeded in renewing and securing several
new significant service contracts in the commercial sector during the year
which contributed additional significant amount of revenue for the year.

The Group has allocated more resources to gain services contracts from
the residential during the year. The Group succeeded in securing several
new significant service contracts for premium private housing estates
which contributed additional significant amount of revenue for the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

The businesses of hospitality in Hong Kong have been severely affected
by the worldwide spreading of COVID-19. Our customers under the
hospitality sector have been requesting the Group to suspend our
services and reduce the pricing and service volume of our services since
the first half of 2020. As a result, the revenue from the hospitality sector
significantly declined for the year and is expected to further decline in the
coming fiscal year.

During the year, the Group was providing hygiene and related services
to several respectable transportation operators in Hong Kong. However,
the price and service volume from these transportation of which the
businesses have been severely affected by the worldwide spreading of
CQOVID-19 have been significantly declining or suspended. Therefore, the
revenue from the transportation sector was significantly decreased for the
year.

Most of the revenue from other sector is recurring and service price is
reviewable on an annual basis.

Results

During the year, the Group was granted by the Government a one-off
subsidy amounting to approximately HK$24.5 million (2020: approximately
HK$4.8 million) under the ESS for part of the monthly salaries of our
employees under the environmental and cleaning services in Hong Kong
which was included in the “Other income” for the year ended 30 June
2021.

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the environmental and cleaning
business in Hong Kong achieved a lower net profit of HK$3.1 million
(excluding the one-off subsidy from the ESS) as compared to the
net profit of HK$5.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2020. The
decrease is mainly due to (i) fierce competition in pricing; (i) continuing
increasing manpower service costs due to the intense labor supply in
the environmental and cleaning service; and (i) decline in the price and
service volume from some of our customers in the commercial, the
hospitality and the transportation sectors of which the businesses have
been severely affected by the worldwide spreading of COVID-19.

Environmental and Cleaning Services in Shanghai, the PRC

The Shanghai Operations remains at the growth stage and obtained
several cleaning service contracts and recorded an increase in the
revenue by approximately HK$7.5 million to approximately HK$35.6
million for the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: approximately HK$28.1
million). Nevertheless, the Shanghai Operations implemented more
efficient working flows and stringent cost control procedures, the net
profit from the Shanghai Operations increased by approximately HK$1.5
million to approximately HK$3.3 million for the year ended 30 June 2021
(2020: approximately HK$1.8 million).
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Money Lending Business

During the year, the economy in Hong Kong and the PRC have been
challenging for all businesses with the prolonged Sino-US trade tensions,
a further struck by the persistent social unrests in Hong Kong and the
worldwide spreading of COVID-19. Amid such negative factors, some
of our borrowers under the money lending business have been severely
affected and are in financial difficulties, and therefore have defaulted on
repayment of their loans and interests on schedules. Therefore, the Group
has recognized the Impairment Loss of approximately HK$9.0 million (2020:
approximately HK$37.0 million) on these past due loans and interests
receivables from such borrowers for the year ended 30 June 2021
specifically. Nevertheless, the Group has been taking actions, including but
not limited to legal proceedings against these borrowers, to recover the
loan principals, interests and all other related recovery costs incurred.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group granted several loans in the aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$123.4 million (2020: approximately
HK$102.5 million) to independent third party borrowers with interest
bearing at rates ranging from 8%—-24% (2020: 8%—24%) per annum. The
increase in the loan balance is mainly due to additional loans granted by
the Group’s money lending business in the PRC during the year.

The interest income from the money lending business for the year ended
30 June 2021 amounted to approximately HK$12.1 million (2020:
approximately HK$16.7 million). The decline in the interest income is
mainly due to the decrease in the average loans balance granted by the
Group throughout the year ended 30 June 2021.

The money lending business recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$6.3 million (excluding the Impairment Loss) for the year ended 30
June 2021 as compared to the net profit of approximately HK$7.6 million
for the year ended 30 June 2020. The decline is primarily due to the
decline in the interest income for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Properties in Hong Kong

As at 30 June 2021, the market prices and sentiment of the commercial
properties in Hong Kong has been gradually and slightly rebounding
since early 2021. As a result, a revaluation gain of approximately HK$3.3
million (2020: revaluation loss of approximately HK$13.2 million) on the
Group’s commercial properties is recorded based on the independent
valuation as at 30 June 2021.
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Investments in Financial Assets

The Group’s investment strategy is to review the investment portfolio
continuously and make appropriate adjustments (by acquisition or
disposal) according to the market situation, with an aim to generate
reasonable returns. During the year, the Group recorded the net realised
loss amounting to approximately HK$0.8 million (2020: HK$Nil) from the
investments in the financial assets.

Information on the performance of the Group’s financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2021 is set
out as below:

Name of stock (Stock code)

RETHEE
AEENKREREATERNREEAALRE
MAFHEEAR(ERAKBERLE)  BHE
EEREDE - FR - AREBRBRESRMEE
EEREESTAI800,0008TT(—E -4 :
THIT) o

BHE_T_—FRA=1THILFE ~&£EK
NHEFABRZ EREEIRRZENHT
e

Realised (loss)/gain on disposals
for the year ended 30 June 2021
BE-ZE-_—FXA=THLEE

IR & 18 (BRADC5R) ZESRHE(FHE) Wa
HK$’000
FET
BAIOO Family Interactive Limited (2100) (0.04)
BRREEEHHFRLQF(2100)
GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (3800) (342)
RA & B IR IZE AR B BR 2 B)(3800)
Goldway Education Group Limited (8160) 20
EHEEEERAF(8160)
Royal Century Resources Holdings Limited (8125) 479)

CEERIZERBRARB125)
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OUTLOOK
Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong

Labor market competition in Hong Kong has intensified with the
implementation of The Statutory Minimum Wage (the “SMW”) which is set
1o be reviewed in coming two years. The Group is also facing higher labor
turnover rate in the environmental and cleaning services industry as more
labor tend to work in other less laborious industries such as the security
guard service industry under the same SMW rate. To offset the increase
in labor costs, the Group is striving to transfer most of the increased
labor costs to our customers and implement more efficient working flows
and stringent cost control procedures. The Group is closely monitoring
the labor turnover rate and regularly reviews our remuneration package
in order to maintain sufficient labor force and cope with the changing
environment. We would continue to enhance the quality of services by
providing training to our front line staff.

The economy in Hong Kong has been challenging and in extreme difficult
for the businesses in the transportation and the hotel sectors as well as
the commercial sector with the worldwide spreading of COVID-19. Our
customers from these sectors have been reducing their service requests
and asking for the prices reduction. We believe that both of our service
income and profit margin from these sectors must be further severely
affected. To mitigate such downturn effect, we would strengthen our
marketing effort in hope to expand our market shares in the commercial
and the residential sectors and continue to consolidate our resources to
focus on high value customers to bring in additional revenue by cross-
selling other cleaning and waste management services to our existing
customers. We believe this strategy may not only improve our revenue
per customer but also increase our profit margin as we could leverage
our existing manpower to perform services at location where we already
have presence. We would explore other new environmental and cleaning
services to expand our service scope to enable customers to use
the Group as a one-stop cleaning contractor. We would continue to
streamline our operations in order to simplify and improve our operation
efficiency. We believe that our success in serving different sectors will
further build up the confidence for new clients to select our cleaning
services in the coming future.

RS
BRRRERERRSE
BEEHEEEREIE(TEERETIE] &

HRARRMEETR)AENK - FEL
BTGB F NG - NEE I IEEHIREK
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ERBEEERETE LT TERANE M RER
MTTERTIIE - PIINR L EFIRGE - RIBHE
TRCAREVIEIN - AR E SR RE D EIE IS5
TRABEZETEPLEHE AN TIERER
BB AR IR Fr - AERBEEES TR
RELEMRA RIS AESTR
F) 858 ) 30 FE 8 N B BV ERIR - BAPISARAR
BBAAARE TREEIIRSRGEE -

HRCOVID-19E K EIE - FBLHETL S Y
RERSBETEANBENMAELEME =
BRBUERETRE - HAIKEZFTENT
F—BRIVERBFENR  LEFRREE - HFIR
7 BPIREZFTENRGEARFBE RS
EXHNE-—THEYE RREAAREY
= ﬁTF?Hﬂ'%M%’If’E AR ATA B % &
EERENTENE  YERERAEREIR
BEXP iﬁ%@ﬂfﬁﬁ%}ﬁxﬂﬁﬁ’%ﬁﬁﬂ%f
KEYERRY - wARBEINREE - AREAFIA]
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AR - B R AFIEE - EERBE I EA RS X
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BAORGEE - EEPEAKEIER R
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ERBMOBERRIFELED
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Environmental and Cleaning Services in the PRC

Together with the extensive business network and operating experience
possessed by the existing management of the Shanghai Operations, the
financial support made by the Group and the management and operating
skills provided by our Group, the Shanghai Operations is expanding as
expected. The Shanghai Operations has been implementing the same
quality control and training program as the same in Hong Kong. The
management of the Shanghai Operations will also refine its marketing
strategies in order to attract more new customers to utilize our cleaning
services in Shanghai, PRC. Through the experience of the Shanghai
Operations, it is believed that the Group would accelerate its expansion
of the environmental and cleaning services into the PRC.

Money Lending Business

With the increasing threat of a downturn of the economy in Hong Kong
and the PRC as a result of the above-mentioned negative factors, the
Group continues its effort in strengthening its risk management policy
and streamlining our existing loan portfolio mix with an aim to reduce our
exposure on high risk loans. A cautious and prudent approach is the key
direction of our money lending strategies that only borrowers with sound
financial abilities would be considered and approved by the Group in the
future.

Investments in Financial Assets

A cautious and prudent approach is continued to be the key direction
of our investment strategies that only companies listed on the Stock
Exchange with valuable prospects would be considered and invested by
the Group in the future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group reported a total revenue of
approximately HK$354.8 million (2020: approximately HK$345.4 million),
representing an increase of approximately 2.7%. The increase is mainly
due to the net effect of (i) increase in the revenue from the environmental
and cleaning services business in Hong Kong by approximately HK$6.3
million to approximately HK$306.9 million for the year ended 30 June
2021 (2020: approximately HK$300.6 million) as a result of several service
contracts in the commercial and the residential sectors awarded by the
Group; (i) increase in the contribution of the revenue of approximately
HK$7.7 million from the Shanghai Operations as several cleaning service
contracts were awarded during the year; and (iiij decrease in the interest
income of approximately HK$4.6 million from the money lending business
after decline in the average loans balances granted by the Group during
the year.
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Other Gain and Other Losses and Impairment

Other gain and other losses and impairment of the Group mainly
consisted of (i) the revaluation gain of approximately HK$3.3 million
(2020: revaluation loss of approximately HK$13.2 million) on the Group’s
commercial properties based on the independent valuation; (i) the
Impairment Loss of approximately HK$9.1 million (2020: approximately
HK$37.4 million) made for the loans and interests receivables under
the Group’s money leading business; and (iii) the net realized loss of
approximately HK$0.8 million on the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

Selling, Marketing Expenses and Administrative Expenses

The Group’s selling, marketing and administrative expenses increased
by approximately HK$2.1 million to approximately HK$27.2 million
(2020: approximately HK$25.1 million) for year ended 30 June 2021,
The increase was mainly due to increase in the selling, marketing and
administrative expenses, including but not limited to staff costs, rental
expenses, entertainment expenses, advertising and promotion expenses,
travelling expenses and general office expenses, of the Group’s
headquarters.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

DISCLOSURE OF ADVANCE TO ENTITIES UNDER
RULE 17.22 OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Included in the Group’s loans receivables with aggregate principal
amount of approximately HK$123.4 million as at 30 June 2021 are the
loans with aggregate principal amount of HK$28.0 million granted to the
below independent third party under the ordinary course of the Group’s
money lending services which exceed 8% of the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 19.07(1) of the GEM Listing Rules as at 30 June 2021.

Htng s & A E 1R REE
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The details of such loans are disclosed under Rule 17.22 of the GEM  AEERHEHBEEIEGEM E MR AIE17.221&

Listing Rules as below: BWENT :
Gross amount of
Loan the loan as at
Name of amount 30June Interest rate
Date of announcements the borrower granted 2021 perannum  Guarantees and security Repayment terms
RZB=-F
AA=TH
AERE BRAZR/ 12 REEHEH L6 FRE  ERRESR BHER
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE#R TEL
8 November 2017, Asian Champion Industrial 30,000 28,000 22%  Personal quarantees executed by the  The Borrower shall pay
8 November 2018 and Limited below independent third parties: interest accrued on the loan
31 May 2019 on amonthly basis and shall
- Mr. Liao Libo, who owns repay the total outstanding
40% equity interest of Asian principal amount of the Loan
Champion Indlustrial Limited; and  together with any outstanding
interest accrued thereon on 7
- Mr.Cheung Wing Chuen,who  November 2022.
owns 60% equity interest of Asian
Champion Industrial Limited
Corporate guarantee executed by
BEERMEERRAR, whichis
owned as to 80% by Mr. Liao Libo
“EtE-ANR BEERARAT 30,000 28,000 2%  ENTBUEZIRINEARR:  ERAESAXNERMNET
2 \Et-ANRR _q_ﬁ%ﬂ
ZE-NERAZT-H - FATDEXARAAM%NE tREEENNRERASH
MBUREE : R BEATAAERR M -

Capital Structure and Fund Raising Activities

The shares of the Company are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. The Company’s share capital comprises only ordinary shares.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group had financed its
operations and capital requirements through operating cash flows and
the subsidies from the HKSAR Government.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$72.5 million (2020: approximately HK$65.5 million).
The increase is mainly due to net cash inflows from the Group’s operating
activities.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

- BBEEREEERNAR0%ME
iog v d]l:d

RELREL RN ERNAER
TRMFERRAARTNARER

BEXRBREEED

R BIRAD A RZPAGEM £ T » AR RIRAE
BT -

RBEERHBER

HE-T-—FXA=TRILEE  AREE
BEETS R R E S RITR AN 2
RESER -

RZEZ—FRA=Z+H xEEBES KRS

LEWH A72,500,0008 T (ZE-_FF : 4

65,500,000/87C) - BREAEMIIEEHRAE
B EHELNBRESRAFEE -




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS X E&wwm &k o

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had net current assets of approximately W _-Z-—HFXA=+H AEEBRHEE

HK$138.3 million (2020: approximately HK$126.5 million) and current
ratio of approximately 2.5 times (2020: approximately 2.70 times) which

remain strong and healthy.

The Group monitors its capital by reference to the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings (including lease
liabilities) divided by total equity. The gearing ratio at the end of the

reporting period was as follows:

F1E 49 /138,300,000 L (=&
126,500,000 70) * MiBhth R4 A2.5E (2%

R

“TF  L2.7018) WJ‘EE@;@%JJ&?%{LAGF

Bank loans
Unlisted corporate bond
Lease liabilities

2021
—B-—-F
HK$’000
FET
RITER
FETRRES
HERE

Total interest-bearing borrowings

AHEEERR

Total equity (inclusive of non-controlling
interests)

PRA B R (B AR IR IR )

202,740

Gearing ratio

EEBELE 17.3%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

TN EARTE °

AEBUEEB B RERFEER o LX)
BB EEAR(BRESAE) RIARTER
FHE o RIERRNEEABLERET

2020
ZE-TF
HK$'000
FA&T
23,401
9,798
1,258

34,457

180,195

19.1%

AR A S AT BT A R X I BME (T S0 ED

The Board is of the opinion that the Group is in a strong and healthy ZE @325 @ NEEEREE MBI ER®

financial position and has sufficient resources to support its operations
and meset its foreseeable capital expenditures and expansions.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had bank deposits of approximately ==
HK$1.7 million (2020: approximately HK$5.3 million) pledged to banks
as security for bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued and 7T ) 2B FR1T

banking facilities granted to the Group.

BREAF RETR -

AEENEEEM

——FXRXA=1+H  AEEEITER
1,700,000 L ( T T F :

o BRARRERAENZEMSE KimEn]

#)

#75,300,000 7%
EABEBREBOREZR

THERMR T AEERITREMER -

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had properties with carrying values of WRZZE=—FXA=+H  AE£EEEMEL A
approximately HK$54.5 million (2020: approximately HK$52.4 million)  54,500,000/& 0 ( =& - =
charged to the bank as security for the bank loans, bankers’ guarantees 77T ) V¥ % 2 TR 17 -

on performance bonds issued and banking facilities granted to the

Group.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the period, major portion of the Group’s operations are located
mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The Group is exposed to
foreign currency risk due to the exchange rate fluctuation of RMB against
HK$ arising from the our environmental and cleaning services business
and money lending business in the PRC. The results of our operations
in the PRC are translated from RMB into HK$ at the exchange rates
approximating the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions while their
financial items are translated from RMB into HK$ at the closing rate ruling
at the end of the reporting period, the resulted exchange differences are
recognised as other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve of the Company and will be reclassified
to profit or loss until the disposal of interests in such operations.
Fluctuation of RMB against HK$ is moderate to the Group during the
period. The Group will review and monitor its currency exposure from
time to time, and when appropriate hedge its currency risk.

Information on Employees

The Group had 1,159 employees (2020: 1,240) as at the end of the Year.
The Group’s remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. The Group recognises the
importance of a good relationship with the employees by providing
competitive remuneration package to the employees including salaries,
allowances, insurance, discretionary bonus, and training for human
resources upskilling. Total staff costs and related expenses (including
Directors’ remuneration) incurred by the Group were approximately
HK$199.9 million (2020: approximately HK$182.8 million) for the year
ended 30 June 2021.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

There were neither significant investments held by the Group as at 30
June 2021 nor material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries made by
the Group during the year ended 30 June 2021.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 30 June 2021, our capital expenditures mainly
included acquisitions of plant and equipment amounting to approximately
HK$1.3 million. These capital expenditures were funded by funds
generated from our operating activities.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Performance bond

HREME
(a) BRHRE

Guarantees on performance bonds in
respect of environmental and cleaning
service contracts

REERFELR

SRR SRR IRIG A KIER

As at As at

30 June 30 June
2021 2020
R-B=—F RIZT-THF
~A=1H ~HA=1+H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
18,729

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued
for due performance under several environmental and cleaning
service contracts of the Group’s environmental and cleaning
services business in Hong Kong.

As at 30 June 2021, the restricted bank fixed deposits of
approximately HK$1.7 million (2020: approximately HK$5.3 million),
the properties with carrying values of approximately HK$49.9 million
(2020: HK$47.8 million) and the corporate guarantee from the
Company and a subsidiary of the Group were pledged to banks as
security for (i) bank facilities of approximately HK$16.7 million (2020:
HK$20.3 million) granted to the Group; and (i) bankers’ guarantees
on performance bonds issued.

The effective period of performance bonds is based on the service
period and the contract terms as specified in these environmental
and cleaning service contracts. The performance bonds may be
claimed by customers if services rendered by the Group fail to meet
the standards as specified in these environmental and cleaning
service contracts.

Litigations - Employees personal injuries

During the year, the Group may from time to time be involved in
litigations concerning personal injuries by its employees or third
party claimants. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group had no
any significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations as all
potential claims made by these employees and third party claimants
are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements and
covered by insurance protection.

(b)

AEERZRETASERBEENRER
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DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently consists of five
Directors comprising two executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (“Mr. Yu”), aged 36, was appointed as executive
Director on 28 October 2016, the chief executive officer of the Company
on 28 November 2017 and the chairman of the Board on 2 July 2019.
He served as non-executive director of China New Energy Power
Group Limited (P BI#T6EJRE) N EEE B R A 7)) (now known as Lamtex
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1041) from 14 March 2016 to 30 August 2016.
He is currently the chairman of FRFE= 2 E % FR A 7] (Shaanxi Hengze
Industrial Corporation Limited*), which is principally engaged in investment
in and development of energy, mining, environmental-preservation, real
estate, and tourism businesses. Furthermore, he is a supervisor of 5
=2HmAHZMR R A R & T A 7l (Uaanchab Kejie Gas Limited Liability
Company*), a company which China National Petroleum Corporation
(fF B AR KA R & B 2 7)) has indirect interest in it, which principally
engaged in (i) construction and re-construction of city gas infrastructures;
(i) design and engineering of expansion work and related installation and
development management; (iii) transportation, sale, provision of after
sale service, research and development of technologies and provision of
consultancy service in relation to city gas; (iv) construction and operation
of various types of gas station; (v) sale of petroleum and natural gas
related equipment; and (vi) construction, operation management of
compressed natural gas projects. Both Mr. Yu and /& B 22 77 1 BLZ ¥4
RAERFEHERF (Ulaanchab Kejie Gas Limited Liability Company*) have
been members of the China Gas Association (FF Bl i A A 17 &).

Mr. Lai Tin Ming (“Mr. Lai”), aged 36, was appointed as an executive
Director on 31 July 2018. He graduated from the Lingnan University,
Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration in 2008.
He joined our Group in July 2010 as a sales and marketing executive
of Pollution & Protection Services Limited (“PPS”), a main operating
subsidiary of the Company engaging in the provision of environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong. He was promoted to the chief
executive officer of PPS in February 2018 and is primarily responsible for
our group’s environmental and cleaning services business including the
recruitment of personnel, approval of budgets, quality control of cleaning
projects, procurement of cleaning materials and equipment, workplace
safety and site supervision.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching Jack (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 38, was appointed
as independent non-executive director (the “Director”) of the Company
and a Chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company on 25 April
2016 and 31 July 2018 respectively. He received his degree of Master
of Laws in commercial and corporate law from King’s College London,
United Kingdom in November 2006 and his Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws and degree of Bachelor of Laws from City University of Hong
Kong in July 2005 and November 2004 respectively. He was admitted
to practise as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 2008. He is practising
in Hong Kong and is currently an associate of a firm of solicitors in Hong
Kong. Mr. Kwong was an independent non-executive director of Hao Bai
International (Cayman) Limited (Stock code: 8431), a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, until his resignation in 16 May 2018.

Mr. Meng Enhai (“Mr. Meng”), aged 35, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of Company on 31 July 2018. He obtained a bachelor degree
in laws from Xian University of Technology (Fa%738 T KX£2) in July 2010.
He joined Bk 78 7k 52 1 12 A = 7 AT (ShanXi Yong Jia Xin Law Office”)
(“Yong Jia Xin Law Office”) in 2010 and serves, at present, as a senior
practicing lawyer and a partner of Yong Jia Xin Law Office for providing
legal services to listed companies in the PRC. He was once the author of
several books relating to the commerce law proceedings and the stock
listing in the PRC.

Mr. Wang Cui (“Mr. Wang”), aged 37, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and a remuneration committee of
the Company on May 2020. He obtained a bachelor degree in Economics
from The University of Warwick of in July 2005. He joined Rolls-Royce
plc in United Kingdom in September 2005 and had roles as Market
Analyst for Asia and Middle East regions, Sales Manager for America
and Europe regions and Sales Director for Global and Vice President for
Greater China customer business. He was transferred to Rolls-Royce
China Holdings Limited in Beijing in May 2016 and now serves as Senior
Vice President of the Civil Aerospare division of Rolls-Royce China
Holdings Limited to oversee its sales, marketing, commercial, account
management, field support, service delivery and engineering sections in
Greater China. He was awarded the “2015 Young Exporter of the Year”
by the British Exporters Association in recognition to his contribution to
the British export industry.

*

For identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management comprises our executive Directors and our
company secretary.

Mr. Chan Woon Wing (“Mr. Chan”), aged 40, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 3 October 2016. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over
10 years of experience in financial reporting and auditing. Prior to joining
the Group in 2014, Mr. Chan had served at the audit department of an
international audit firm for six years. Mr. Chan joined the Group in 2014
and is mainly responsible for overseeing the company secretary work of
the Company now.
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are (i) the provision of environmental and cleaning services;
and (ii) the provision of money lending services in Hong Kong and PRC.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 June 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from pages 91 to 92 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 30 June
2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular shown in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section from pages 8 to 19 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some of which are specific to the Group or the industries in
which the Group operates. The Directors have established a policy to
ensure that significant risks which may adversely affect the Group, are
identified, reported, monitored, and managed on a continuous basis.
The Group has identified the following key risks that are considered to
be significant to the Group, which may adversely and/or materially affect
the Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of operations and
growth prospects. Key risks relating to the Group’s businesses and to
the industries in which the Group operates are including but not limited
to:

Environmental and Cleaning Services
Customers

(i) A majority of the service contracts have fixed service terms that
range from one to three years and many of them are granted to
the Group by way of tendering. There is no assurance of the grant
of new contracts nor renewal of the existing contracts and these
uncertainties may have negative impact on the financial results of
the Group. Moreover, in the competitive tendering process, the
Group may have to lower the service charges in the bids in order
to increase the competitiveness of the tenders and the Group
may encounter great pressure on the profit margins if the Group is
unable to reduce the costs accordingly. In such event, the financial
results and profitability would be materially and adversely affected.

(i)~ Most of the service contracts of the Group are fixed-price contracts,
under which the Group provides the cleaning and related services
at a pre-determined price. If the Group fails to accurately estimate
the costs or fail to execute fixed-price contracts within the cost
estimates, the results of operation would be adversely affected. As
a result, the Group may not be able to adjust the service fees nor
recover any cost overruns, which may in turn adversely affect the
reputation, financial conditions, profitability or liquidity.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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(i)  The aggregate revenue generated from the five largest customers
of the environmental and cleaning services represented nearly
28.8% of the total revenue of the environmental and cleaning
services for the year ended 30 June 2021. The Group does not
enter into long-term service contracts with any of these customers,
which the Directors believe is in line with the market practice of the
environmental services industry in Hong Kong. These customers
may terminate their business relationships with the Group upon
expiry of the service contracts. If any of the key customers, including
these five largest customers, substantially reduces the volume
and/or value of services procured from the Group or terminates its
business relationship with the Group, there is no assurance that
the Group would be able to find substitute customers or to secure
comparable contracts to replace any such loss of revenue. If any
of the above happens, the business and performance would be
materially adversely affected.

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation
of the Group. We places great emphasis on quality control. We have
obtained ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and the Qualification Level Certificate
of China Cleaning Industry — National 1st Level Qualification, and are
committed to delivering professional services and achieving customer
satisfaction. To understand clients’ needs, we conduct site assessments
and communicate with our clients before commencing services. We have
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures on “Quality Management
Plan”, a framework that focuses on business goals and objectives. During
the performance of our services, our employees will carry out regular
check on the service quality, including services delivered by the Group’s
own employees and third-party service providers, and record occasions
of substandard performance and any follow-up actions taken.

Budgeting is the key factor of our business operations. To formulate the
reasonable and competitive pricing, we carefully prepare, review and
discuss, among the management and operation teams, the details of
budget for every service contract based on our 20 years more experience
in the environmental and cleaning industry and latest market information.
During the performance of our services, any deviations from the budgets
are seriously investigated and monitored for, if any, remedy actions and
recorded for our reference in coming budgeting.

Service mix, service quality and competitive pricing, which are regarded as
key to good relationship with our customers, are continuously reviewed
with the aim to cater for our customers’ fast-changing needs and
enhance their satisfactions and business relationship with the Group.
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Employees

U

(i)

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
the insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against
certain risk. Employees who suffer from bodlily injuries or death as
a result of accidents or diseases occurred during the course of
their employment are entitled to claim damages and compensation
against the Group under the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
as well as under the common law. The Group has taken out
insurance policies to cover these potential claims, including
employees’ compensation insurance and public liability insurance.
However, the outcome of any claim is subject to the relevant parties’
negotiation or the decision of the court or the relevant arbitration
authorities, and the result of any of the outstanding claims may
be unfavourable to the Group. As a result, the Group may have to
pay out of the own resources for any uninsured financial or other
losses, damages and liabilities and litigation that could materially
and adversely affect the business, financial conditions and results of
operations.

The Group has experienced high turnover rate of the operation
team and the operation could be adversely affected by difficulties
in recruiting and retaining sufficient workforce to meet the needs.
As the environmental and cleaning services industry is a labour-
intensive industry, this exacerbated after the implementation of the
SMW in Hong Kong as workers have more choices, such as security
guards, which may drive workers away from the cleaning industry.
If the Group is unable to maintain the stability of the staff or retain
sufficient number of staff members to perform the service contracts
or fill the vacancies with suitable staff or services from suitable
third party service providers, the quality of services, operation and
financial results would be adversely affected.

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt.
The Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belongings
to the Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the
importance of labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment
process. It also provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working
environment. In order to help cater for the continuous development of the
employees, professional trainings and self development sponsorships are
provided. The Group values any feedback from employees and hopes to
maintain open communication with the latter, which favours a good and
long-lasting relationship.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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Money Lending Business

U

Any adverse changes in macroeconomic conditions and fluctuation
of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange
rates, equity prices and property prices in Hong Kong as well as
the PRC may generally affect market demands and the repayment
abilities of customers which may lead to adverse impact on the
Group’s revenue and liquidity. The Group would from time to time
fine-tune the Group’s business strategies, policies and procedures,
in particular the loan approval procedures, according to the market
situation.

Non-compliance with or any changes in the relevant laws and
regulations may bring various consequences to the Group, including
but not limited to the revocation or suspension of the money lenders
licence and/or the imposition of penalties resulting from the offence.
Relevant operation policies and procedures have been adopted
and in place to ensure that the daily operation of the Group is
in compliance with the relevant requirements. Internal reporting
procedures have been established and when any suspected case
of employees and customers’ misconduct and/or fraud arises, any
staff can report directly to the management. The staff handbook
has also stipulated that employees and customers’ misconduct and
fraud are prohibited.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company is committed to operating in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of various stakeholders including the Group’s
employees, customers, suppliers and the community.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its
various stakeholders are set out in the paragraph headed “Social” in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section from pages 66
to 76 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise our environmental impact by raising
energy efficiency and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials such as the adoption of paperless systems and practices in
its daily operations, the duplex printing and copying, and the recycling
of ink cartridges and toner cartridges, etc. In addition, the Group has
adopted environmentally-friendly service procedures in providing the
environmental and cleaning services to its customers for which the Group
has obtained certificates and awards from different environmentally-
oriented organisations.

Further details of about the Group’s environmental policies are set out in
the paragraph headed “Environmental” in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” section from pages 57 to 65 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the PRC and
the Company itself is listed on GEM. In light of this, the Group upholds
high corporate governance standards and strives to ensure that its
business practice complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the
respective jurisdictions. Reviews on regulatory compliance of its business
operation are conducted from time to time. During the year under
review and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has been in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on its listing status in Hong Kong, the environmental and cleaning
services and the money lending business which mainly include but
not limited to the GEM Listing Rules, the Employment Ordinance, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
and the MLO.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$5,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the classes and movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
95 and 96 of this annual report and note 30(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2021, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders amounting to approximately HK$101.6 million (2020:
HK$104.6 million) calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and financial position for the past five
financial years is set out on page 180 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s revenue and subcontracting costs
attributable to the Group’s major customers, subcontractors and

suppliers respectively for the year ended 30 June 2021 is as follows:
Revenue Wz

The largest customer BAEF

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAE
Subcontracting costs DERA
The largest subcontractor BARDERE
Five largest subcontractors in aggregate ARDBEEE

During the year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers, subcontractors and suppliers.
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Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Yu Shaoheng
RATEE

Mr. Lai Tin Ming
RREAKE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
BEFi2%4E

Mr. Meng Enhai
RRERE

Mr. Wang Cui
THELE

Mr. Wong Hiu Fong
ThEf et

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Lai Tin Ming, Mr. Meng Enhai and Mr. Wang Cui retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not terminable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

During the year and up to date of this annual report, the executive
Directors, Yu Shaoheng and Lai Tin Ming are also directors in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this annual report
include Mr. Chan Woon Wing, Mr. Chan Chok Fun, Mr. Lu Yi, Mr. Tse
Bing Wah and Mr. Yang Guang Wei.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Group as at the date of this report are set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 20 to 22 of this
annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration is determined with reference to the nature of job,
performance, qualifications and experience of individual employees, as
well as the result of the Group and the market trend. The Group carries
out staff performance appraisal once a year and the assessment result is
used for salary reviews and promotion decisions.

The Group recognises the importance of staff training and thus regularly
provides internal and external training for its staff to enhance their skills
and knowledge. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with
reference to the duties and level of responsibilities of each Director, the
remuneration policy of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
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SHARE OPTIONS
(1) Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attract, retain and reward the
eligible persons and to provide the eligible persons an incentive or
reward for their contribution to the Group and by enabling such
persons’ contribution to further advance the interests of the Group.
The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 28 May 2013 and shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the date of adoption, after which period no further options will be
offered or granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects with respect
to options granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include directors,
consultants or advisers and any other person who has contributed
to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a price
determined by the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing
prices per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; or (i) the nominal value of the share.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Person
concerned for such period as determined by the Board, being a
date not later than ten business days after the offer date by which
the Eligible Person must accept the offer or be deemed to have
declined it, provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the tenth anniversary of the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified
by the Board to the grantee which the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine, save that such period shall not be more than
ten years from the date of acceptance of the offer (subject to the
provisions for early termination in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme).
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The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the offer shall be a nominal amount to be determined by the Board.

The maximum number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) in
respect of which the share options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at
the date of the annual general meeting of the Company on 30 November
2018 at which the Company passed an ordinary resolution to refresh the
maximum number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all the share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of the Shares in respect of which share options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together with any
options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company in issue
shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each Eligible Person (including both exercised
and outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme) in any twelve-
month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Where any further grant of the share options to an Eligible
Person would result in excess of such limit shall be subject to the
approval of the shareholders at general meeting with such Eligible Person
and his associates abstaining from voting.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, no share options were granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 30 June 2021, the total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 54,000,000
shares, representing 10% and 10% of the Shares in issue as at 30 June
2021 and 28 September 2021, being the date of this annual report,
respectively.

ERARMEERANARAINREAS
B AWSENEHESFEET -

ARRER T N\F+—A=Z1tHZERRE
FAE BB BRERENRBEBRET S
TR Z A BRERITERRAEETZR
RS E - BT 3R R N BEEM
W2 A RBBRD (TG D &=8E T S8
BARARERBFRGARDHTRNZ
10% °

RBBIERT B AT e R L OB - B RRE
RER T | R AR R E b RE At T S0
A EITHEINR B FITENBRES RA D
#E ESTEBETHCHETRNDAHN
30% (AR IBEGEM £ A1 Al AT BE L FFH) H A 8
EEE K

EREBATIREN T ZEAMEARTE
HERBERE(REBRESE TETERN
RITEEH R ) T 2 21T RGBT
2 NMEEBARF D ETRANI% © fHiE—
FRABERALR THBRE/SBLZRE - B
AERRAE ERSRRIE - MEBEER
AT REBEATARERE -

BE_T_—FA=THILLFE - BERE
B T BB (AT B AR -

%

—E-—FXRAZTH ARABREERE
T &) 7] T 817 2 I8 10 48 2R 54,000,000 % A%
7 DREER_ZE_—FA=THAEK=Z
T—FAA-+HN\B(EIARFREH) BT
3HI10% K 10% °

ot
-+

&

EHERERAR ik 2021 (EE)




DIRECTORS’ REPORT &£ 234

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors and
the chief executive and their respective associates had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within of the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Percentage of
Name of the Total number total issued
company in which of ordinary  Long/short share capital
Name of Director interest is held Capacity shares  position in the Company
REFRER EERAT2H
e BEEHARERE L) LERAE HE/ %R ERITRAEDL
Mr. Yu Shaoheng The Company Beneficial owner (Note 1) 350,536,631 Long 64.91%
RATRAE NG Baa A e
Hote: GEE

1. Mr. Yu Shaoheng is the son of Mr. Yu Weiye and the step-son of Ms. Mui
Fong.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2021, no person other than
certain Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group.
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Percentage of
Name of the Total number total issued
Name of company in which of ordinary Long/short share capital
Shareholder interest is held Capacity shares position in the Company
RESPEE NG
RRER BEEHDARERE 5t LERAE  HER/KAE ERITRABDL
Mr. Yu Weiye The Company Beneficial owner 54,431,400 Long 10.08%
REERE NN BHBEAA HE
Ms. Mui Fong The Company Interests of spouse (Note 1) 54,431,400 Long 10.08%
|t N BefdEa (Ffiat) HE
Note: Bi3E

1. Ms. Mui Fong (“Ms. Mui”) is the wife of Mr. Yu. Ms. Mui is deemed to be
interested in 54,431,400 Shares owned by Mr. Yu in accordance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

1. BWBFrT((EERTDARTEZET - BEF
HEREEED - BRI HERARREERED
54,431,4000¢ f& (D P HE B RS ©

HBRZERAMRDR S35 2021 @




DIRECTORS’ REPORT &£ 234

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SHARES

During the year ended 30 June 2021, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public during the year ended
30 June 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year and up to date of this annual report, none of the
Directors, controlling shareholders and their respective associates as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules is interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 11 June 2021, Mr. Yu Shaoheng (“Mr. Yu”), being the chairman of
the board of directors, the chief executive officer, the executive director
and the controlling shareholder of the Company, granted to Shenzhen
Environmental Cleaning Services Limited® (R IIERIZFRZRIE B R A A)
(“SECSL”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, a loan
in the principal amount of RMB3,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,245,938 as at the date of the grant) which is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand (the “Shareholder Loan”). Accordingly,
Mr. Yu is a connected person of the Company and the grant of the
Shareholder Loan constituted a connected transaction of the Company
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. As the grant of the Shareholder
Loan is conducted on better commercial terms and unsecured, it is fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 30 June 2021, the outstanding principal amount of the Shareholder
Loan was RMB3,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,170,542).

Subsequent to the year end date and up to the date of this annual report,
the Shareholder Loan was fully repaid by SECSL.

# For identification purpose only

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

BE LEIEERSD

REE-T-—FXA=+RILEE K27
SHAMHBATHEBEE - HERBEEM
Bt o

RHENDIBERE

BEADFADHIRGHER - LR EERH
A RBRE-T-—FAASTALFEAR
A2 HEBITRAT S L25% T ARAL
A o

BrEBERE

ARRMEBERARMFAERSAMTES
FELBERNEI - REARRARLAIA
RERREZRETRD -

PR RS

REARBEARNFHRAY  MEEF - EEK
REBREEENBEALT(EERGEMLETR
A]) REAFEXGEZIRMEBRBEF X
AIRERB R B RSP A (R e

BERXS

R-E-—FXA+T—HBH ARAE=EEeE
& TR ATEERIERBERBF L
E((REEDBARGBZEZEMHBARIEY
RIBREZREER ARG (DRYIERBRZRE )
R ARE 5 A ARE3,500,0007T (P % B H
FEE 1 #)4,245,93878 70 ) MK IR - £ B KR7A
REREENER(EREER]D - Bt - BRI
GEM ETTRA » RICEBARBIMEEAL
BREBREFTERNANGN—BEREERS °
AR HEREE R IRREGTETT R ER
B BRIEGEM AR AI - EES AR EST
R E - FEEMATERERE

RZZE-—FXA=18 WEEZHXK
BiEARESEE A ARES,500,0007T (HHERL
4,170,642 70) - NFEEHEHEREEARTF
HAH  FIRRRERFE2EBEERRER

Eon
A °




DIRECTORS’ REPORT X234

Saved as disclosed above, there are no related party transactions as
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements that falls
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” under the GEM Listing Rules during the year.

The material related party transactions are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” section on pages 38 to 50 of this annual
report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”), who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having been
approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a
resolution to re-appoint Baker Tilly as the auditors of the Company and
to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of COVID-19 since early 2020 has brought about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operations and financial position. The Group
has actively put in place measures in mitigating its impact. The Group will
closely monitor the development and will keep its alleviating measures
under regular review.

On behalf of the Board

Yu Shaoheng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 September 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in order to uphold the transparency of the Group and
safeguard interests of the Shareholders.

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Code
for the year ended 30 June 2021 and up to the date of this annual report,
except for the deviations of the following Codes.

(i)  Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the year under review and up to the
date of this annual report, the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company is performed by the executive
Director, Mr. Yu Shaoheng. The Company considered that under
the supervision of its Board and its independent non-executive
Directors, a balancing mechanism existed so that the interests
of the Shareholders were adequately and fairly represented. The
Company considered that there was no imminent need to change
the arrangement.

(i)  The Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that all non- executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Currently, all non-executive Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term. They
are, however, subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election
of directors in the articles of association of the Company. Since their
appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those set out in the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms which are the same as the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding them
of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed securities
during the blackout periods before the publication of announcements of
financial results.

The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, that all the Directors have complied with the required standards
of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors throughout the period under review. The Company was not
aware of any non-compliance in this respect throughout the year ended
30 June 2021.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective manner.
Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company. Matters reserved for the Board include, but not limited to:

e approval of the Group’s long term strategy, policies and annual
budgets;
e oversight of the Group’s operations and management;

e approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or
practices;

e approval of major changes to the Group’s corporate structure,
management and control structure;

e approval of quarterly, interim and annual results;
e responsible for internal control and risk management; and

e approval of matters in relation to Board membership and Board
remuneration.
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As at 30 June 2021 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised five Directors, including two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, of which one independent non-
executive Director has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise in order to achieve
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance, as set out
below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Tin Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 20 to 22
of this report.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance covering for its
Directors.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) among other members of the Board.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent. None of the
independent non-executive Directors has served the Company for more
than 9 years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions specified in Code
Provision D.3.1, which include reviewing the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, the continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, our Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements (including the GEM Listing Rules) and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

The Directors are aware of the requirement under the code provision
A.6.5 of the Code regarding continuous professional development.
During the year, the Company had arranged a training session to all
Directors in regards to director’s duty which was conducted by an
external professional firm. In addition, Directors also reviewed the reading
materials related to corporate governance and regulations that provided
to them concerning latest developments in corporate governance
practices and relevant legal and regulatory developments.

DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without a specific employment tenure, but
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
AGM one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Such retiring Directors may,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of Shareholders after their appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in other clauses in the articles of
association of the Company or in any agreement between the Company
and such Directors (but without prejudice to any claim for damages under
any such agreement), the Directors can be removed from office by notice
in writing served upon him or her signed by not less than three-fourths in
number of the total number of Directors then in office (or, if that is not a
round number, the nearest lower round number) and for the avoidance
of doubt, the counting of the total number of Directors then in office shall
include such Director subject to the proposed removal.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Their respective terms of
reference are set out in the Company’s website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 May 2013 with
terms of reference in compliance with paragraphs C3.3 and C3.7 of the
Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and internal
control systems, as well as the overall risk management of the Group,
reviewing the consolidated financial statements and the quarterly, interim
and annual reports of the Group, and reviewing the terms of engagement
and scope of audit work of the external auditors. In this regard, members
of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board, the senior management
and auditors. The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the accounting staff, compliance officer or auditors.

The composition of the Audit Committee during the year and up to the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

The members of the Audit Committee possess diversified industry
experience and the chairman of the Audit Committee has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the Group
the financial and accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, its internal controls and financial reporting matters and the above
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

AC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 4/4
Mr. Meng Enhai 4/4
Mr. Wang Cui 4/4

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of
the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
and nomination of directors and making recommendations to the Board
on appointment and reappointment of Directors.

The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year and up to
the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance in compliance with
paragraph A.6 of the Code.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination
Committee shall carry out the selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, education background, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
and also the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. Qualified candidates then be recommended to the
Board for approval.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting
are as follows:

NC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 1/1
Mr. Wang Cui 1/1

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among
other things, formulating and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy, determining the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive
Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2021 by band is set out as follows:
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Number of individuals

Remuneration band (in HK$) HreeE(ET) A
Nil to 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 1
Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and the AHREZEHME T ASSEH A THE—FE1E

five highest paid individuals are set out in the notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year and up
to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:

RC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 1/1
Mr. Wang Cui 1/1

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a year,
and Directors shall receive at least 7 days prior written notice of such
meetings in compliance with paragraph A.1.1 of the Code. Agendas and
accompanying papers are sent before the Board meetings to ensure that
the Directors are given sufficient time to review the same.

During the year under review, the Board held four board meetings and
1 general meeting. The Directors attended those meetings in person, by
phone or through other electronic means of communication.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings during
the year under review is set out below:

Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Board  General
Name of Directors Meeting  Meeting
Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Shaoheng 4/4 01
Mr. Lai Tin Ming 4/4 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 4/4 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 4/4 0/1
Mr. Wang Cui 4/4 0/1

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions
were well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings and written
resolutions are kept by the Company Secretary and are available to all
Directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the Board on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts
and presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment for
the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concemn.

The Company’s auditors, Baker Tilly, acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2021,
which are set out in “Independent Auditors Report” section on pages 85
to 90 of this report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Baker Tilly in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 30 June 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$725,000 and HK$69,000 respectively.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that proper and
effective risk management and internal control systems (the “RMIC
System”) of the Group are maintained. The senior management of the
Company is delegated with the responsibility to design and implement
an internal control system to manage risks. The senior management of
the whole Group, including but not limited to, the directors, executives
and super of the major operating units of the Group, maintains, monitors
and implements the risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

The Group’s RMIC System include a defined management structure
with specified limits of authority, which are designed to achieve business
objectives and goals, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, control over operating and capital expenditures, ensure
the maintenance of proper books and records for providing reliable
financial information used for internal or publication purposes, and ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and risks to be exposed, and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operations
systems achievement of the Group’s objectives and goals.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate
governance practice and RMIC System. The Group has established
controlling teams (the “Controlling Teams”) nominated by the Board and
the Audit Committee comprising the directors, executives and supervisors
of the major operating units of the Group to take up the responsibilities
of monitoring the day-to-day operational management, risk management
function, and internal control systems of all operating units of Group,
integrating with the systems of monthly and annual planning and
budgeting process, counter-approval and implementation and control
process, identifying any risk or possible failure of the operating units, and
reporting and making suggestions on how each operating unit to achieve
the objectives and goals set. The controlling teams meet regularly with
the Board and the Audit Committee and report on matters to be updated
to the Board and the Audit Committee timely.
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Risk Management Approach

The Group strives to identify and assess the key risks faced by the Group
based on the following risk management approach:

(i) Risks Identification

The Controlling Teams are responsible for identifying potential
risks, through periodically reviewing the Group’s business and
financial data, testing the effectiveness of the Group’s existing
internal control procedures and policies; and

All staff are required and encouraged to report any risks,
particularly those risks that are material weaknesses and
deviation in the Group’s existing internal control procedures
and policies, to the Controlling Teams or the Board and the
Audit Committee.

(i) Risks Assessment and Measurement

Risks identified or reported are further evaluated and
scrutinised, through consolidating, filtering and prioritising
processes by the Controlling Teams;

Material risks that may seriously affect the business, operational
or financial aspects of the Group are immediately handled by
the Controlling Teams, the Board and the Audit Committee;
and

Immaterial risks that are acceptable to the Group will be closely
monitored by the Controlling Teams to ensure that the level of
risk will not increase to an unacceptable level.

(iij) Risks Control and Mitigation

Considering and weighting the benefits and costs of all
available solutions and choosing the appropriate ones;

Elimination of the material risks entirely by taking immediate
remedy actions such as modifying the Group’s existing
business strategies, internal controls and operational
procedures; and

Mitigation of the material risks by reducing their impact as
much as possible such as transferring the impact of the risks
to third parties and implementing alternative procedures and
policies.

(iv) Risks Monitoring

The Board and the Audit Committee in conjunction with the
Controlling Teams closely monitor the risks identified and the
progress of the remedy actions taken to ensure that the level
of risk will not increase to an unacceptable level; and

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are
submitted by the Controlling Teams to the Board and the Audit
Committee annually for their review.
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During the year, the Controlling Teams has summarized the risks
identified and reviewed the effectiveness of the RMIC System. The
findings have been summarised and submitted to the Board and the
Audit Committee for review. The Board and the Audit Committee
concluded that the RMIC System is effective and adequate and the
principal risks identified have been adequately controlled.

The principal risks identified and related control procedures are set out in
the paragraph headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in the “Directors’
Report” section from pages 24 to 27 of this annual report respectively.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours as stated in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to
the public, the Group ensures the information is not false or misleading
as to a material fact, nor false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public.

Certain policies and procedures have been taken by the Group to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include but not limited
to (i) trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with reasonable care;
(i) confidentiality documents are kept by the designated personnel
and placed in the designated locked areas; (iii) transmission of inside
information in electronic form should be password-protected; and (iv)
access of inside information is restricted to designated employees on a
need-to-know basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s process
and communications among Board members and with the Shareholders
and the management, and advising the Board and its committees on
all corporate governance matters. He reports to the Board and/or the
Managing Director and his selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a
Board decision.

The Directors have accessed to the advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. The company secretary took more than 15
hours’ professional training for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

Any one or more Members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Office A, 12/F, Tower A, Capital Tower, No. 38
Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The company
secretary of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business matters, such
as suggestions and inquiries, to the relevant executive officer of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information
to the Shareholders and the investing public. The Company’s corporate
website is www.ppsintholdings.com.

All corporate communication materials published on the GEM website
(http://www.hkgem.com) are posted on the Company’s corporate
website as soon as practicable after their release. The Company’s
constitutional documents are also available on our website. No significant
changes were made to these documents during the year ended 30 June
2021. Information on the website shall be updated on a regular basis.

Share registration matters shall be handled for the Shareholders by the

Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 15/F,
International Trade Tower, 348 Kwun Tong Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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The Company is delighted to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “ESG Report”). This ESG Report herein
focuses on providing an overview of the environmental and social aspects
of the Group, and outlines how we continually improve our operational
strategy in regard to our environment and society in order to cope with
the global standards of sustainability.

For details on corporate governance of the Company, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” section from pages 38 to 50 of this
annual report.

For details in relation to our financial performance during the Reporting
Period, please refer to the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section and the audited financial statements together with related notes
from pages 8 to 19 and pages from 91 to 179 of this annual report
respectively.

REPORT SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

This ESG Report has outlined the overall Group’s performance in
environmental protection, human resources, operating practice and
community involvement for the financial year ended 30 June 2021
(“Reporting Period”).

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the data of all operating
units, i.e. the money lending business and the environmental and cleaning
services business, of the Group.

PREPARATION BASIS OF THE ESG REPORT

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide (“Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, and
complies with the disclosure obligations of “mandatory disclosure” and
“comply or explain” provisions. HKEX's Guide for this ESG Report from
pages 77 to 84 of this annual report is provided for cross-referencing
purpose.

In preparing the ESG Report, the Group has adopted the international
standards and emission factors specified in the guidance materials on
ESG issued by the Stock Exchange for computing the relevant Key
Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)!, and there is no change from previous
year in the way the ESG Report has been prepared. The application of
materiality is detailed in the subsection headed “ESG Management —
Materiality Assessment”.

1 How to prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPls, https://www.hkex.com.hk/-/media/hkex-market/listing/
rules-and-guidance/other-resources/environmental-social-and-governance/
how-to-prepare-an-esg-report/app2_kpis
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ESG MANAGEMENT
Statement of the Board

As an environmental protection and cleaning services enterprise, we
value environmental sustainability and have been striving to integrate the
concept into every part of our daily business operations. The ESG Report
summarizes the strategy, practice and vision of our Group in respect of
the issues related to ESG, and conveys a clear message of our Group’s
devotion for sustainability.

The Board has an overall responsibility for overseeing our Group’s ESG-
related risks and opportunities, establishing the ESG-related strategies
and targets of our Group, and reviewing our Group’s performance
annually against the ESG-related targets. In pursuant of our commitment
towards responsible corporate citizen, we have set up an ESG Working
Group and it comprises members from middle to senior management,
which supports the Board in implementing ESG-related strategies and
targets, and promoting the implementation of measures in relation to
ESG issues identified.

The Board will continue to review our Group’s progress in relation to ESG
issues in order to build a more sustainable business and bring greater
benefits for the society as a whole.

BiR  HEREREE
ExEeEH

ERRRRENEERBEE - RABRERE
RMAREN Y —BERNNEZESBARE
EBEENSERE - NRE - HERERR
TRETAKRERNRE - He e aiREEE
FERRE BEEMES - YHREEAKE
HAFEERAORA -

EEe2MAREEARERE Heak®h
R N8 - BIEAREERE LB REAK
BEER  Y2RERR HERELREREF
BERARELRE - RARARTERARAK
o BPIERRE - e RERTIFE - i
TRESHREEEKEMAK  BEXKEES
BERE  HeREARBLER  WHER
BERCHENRE e REaHENER

EESHBEBEAEEAMNES  HERE
SEREOER - UTEFNABANLE
BEEER BT AT o

The Board is responsible for the overall decision-making process and overseeing
the formulation, administration, and assessment of the ESG system.
EXSRARRARARLEERE HeRERRSORL

B KT

ESG Working Group

BE - HERERTHA

monitoring the ESG matters on a daily basis.
RBE - HEgREATIFEHEREHE
EHo

BEERER

The ESG Working Group is responsible for assisting the Board in managing and

RS HekERNAR

Functional Department

B RERRPT

the preset ESG-related strategies and targets.

Functional departments are responsible for the execution of measures to achieve

BAe R B EMITHEBERAERAENRE tgEaRBELERE -
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Our Stakeholders

As stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of
our business, we make use of various communication channels to
understand and engage our stakeholders. We believe that stakeholder
engagement helps us in better understanding the needs and concerns
of all our key stakeholders. The probable points of concern of the
stakeholders and the way of our communication and responses are listed

below.

BANELE

HRFNEEEFRAXBRYTEEEES
MEZEMNER  MRMSASEEBRENE
LRSI NE - LEE  HHENSESR
BHRMTHEAMEIESNENTERBISE
H o FHENFTRERIBIA LR M E R K& Ol
FETFIREAT ©

Communication and Responses

AEE DR

Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern

HE T BERAE 2

HKEX Compliance with listing rules, and timely and
accurate announcements.

ERBR B WP ETRA) - REREREM T NS o

Government Compliance with laws and regulations,
preventing tax evasion, business ethics, and
social welfare.

245 BERERAN - BLIESE - mERTRAE

Investors and

BT

Corporate governance, business strategies and

shareholders performance, and investment returns.

HEERBRE BEER  ¥BRERERR - URIEEDR

Media & Public Corporate governance, environmental
protection, and human rights.

PLS JS PN TEES  RREAE -

Suppliers Corporate reputation, payment schedule, and
stable demand.

HrEm EERE  NRKERRIBEESLK -

Customers Service quality, service delivery schedule,
reasonable prices, service value, and personal
data protection.

Y RIEE X - IRISIRHEE - SRES - R
BEREABIRRE -

Employees Rights and benefits of employees,
compensation, training and development,
work hours, occupational health and safety,
and working environment.

(== BB OEN RABN - Mg - JFIEERE - THE

BEE - BRI TR o

Meetings, training, workshops, programs, website
updates, and announcements.
g B IiED  5HEl - PUEHRAE o

Interaction and visits, government inspections,
tax returns, ongoing communication with relevant
government departments, and other information.
BE RFD - BUTRE - @BimRk - AR
PV FHE BB A R E R o

Briefing sessions and seminars, interviews,
shareholders’ meetings, issue of financial reports
or operation reports for investors, ESG report,
and media and analysts.

EEEmE A E - S RRARE - MKRE
o REROTEREVBREREERSE AR
BB g kERWmSE -

Newsletters on the Company’s website.
TEANA RIA LB IR AR o

Site visits.

B

After-sales services.
EBRTE -

Union activities, trainings, interviews with
employees, internal memos, and employee
suggestion boxes.

T&&ES  Hl - BRI  NEESEMER
BRA -
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Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern Communication and Responses

BHE T EERR 2 BB E e

Community Community environment, employment Community activities, employee voluntary
opportunities, community development, and activities, and community welfare subsidies and
social welfare. donations.

i HRIRE  EREES HERERREEEN - HREH EERZITED  HREFEHRLLE

Materiality Assessment

To ensure prompt and proper management of key sustainability
issues, all ESG issues that may have potential impact on our business
operation are evaluated annually. Material aspects are those that reflect
the Group’s significant economic, environmental and social impacts;
or that substantially influence the assessments and decisions of our
stakeholders. We have compiled and prioritized the material aspects
with reference to an array of factors, including our Group’s overall
strategy, development, goals and targets. In addition, we have included
KPI in the Report in order to provide our stakeholders and the public a
more comprehensive and profound understanding of the effectiveness
of the implemented operational strategies in pursuing environmental
sustainability. These priorities allow us to uphold our commitment to our
stakeholders while managing the impacts we have on the society and
environment.

The results of the materiality assessment on the identified ESG issues are
set out in the table below:

g o
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ESG Issues B HeREREE

1 Emissions 1 P

2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions 2 RERBEHEM

3 Hazardous Waste 3 BEEED

4 Non-Hazardous Waste 4 EEEREY

5  Energy Consumption 5 RERERE

6  Water Consumption 6  FK

7 Natural Resources 7 RANER

8  Climate Change 8 SIREL

9  Employment 9 [Ef®

10 Health and Safety 10 EEEZE

11 Development and Training 11 R EIEI

12 Labour Standards 12 ZTAER|

13  Supplier Engagement 13 gL

14 Product and Service Responsibility 14 ERERBEL

15 Anti-corruption 15 RES

16 Community Investment 16 HEEE

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION RIFRFAT

Our outstanding business performance has earned us various industry ﬁf?ﬁﬁiﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ@%% THREOR
awards which have further reinforced our position in the market. The —FERETRMANTISHA - AEBEERER

Group continues to be recognized for its efforts to promote corporate ﬁﬂ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁa 7] o TRIIR
social responsibilities. The following table shows what we have achieved — IR HRE FAAESAINRE o
during the Reporting Period.

Organisers Awards

WA 315

Association of China Commercial Enterprise Qualification Level Certificate of China Cleaning Industry —
Management National 1st Level Qualification

PEEECEEERE PEERBERITREREE —BR &

Association of China Commercial Enterprise China Top 100 Cleaning Service Enterprises
Management

TEHEEEEEBE HENERIRISITE AR

Association of China Commercial Enterprise Quialification of Stone Cleaning and Maintenance
Management

PEEXCREEREHE AMEREEEE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise Qualification of High-Altitude Facades Cleaning
Management

TEEECEEERE BEIMEBEREE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise Qualification of Central Air-Conditioning System Cleaning and
Management Maintenance

TEHELEEEBS SR ERRGESAEREL
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Organisers

ES: ]

Awards

#15

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

GBS S i O

Association of China Enterprise

FEEELEHE

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKFEFABRAFA

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIAF ¥ HRAF

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKFFARATA

Environmental Protection Department

BEREE

Environmental Campaign Committee
RFEHEER

Environmental Campaign Committee

REEHLEE

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
FELEREHS

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
B AESEEER

Qualification of Indoor Environment Purification and Monitoring

ERRFCEENES

Qualification of Property Cleaning Trusteeship
MEBRTEERE

ISO 9001:2015
ISO 9001:2015

ISO 14001:2015
ISO 14001:2015

ISO 45001:2018
ISO 45001:2018

Certificate of Commendation for joining the Carbon Footprint
Repository for Listed Companies in Hong Kong
xR —BE LT ARIRE I E RS

Wastewi$e — Excellence Level

RRERE & — P AR

Environmental Initiatives and Participation — Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence

REDHRETNAEHE N L2 E -FBRFEMAE

Caring Company
EREEE

Good MPF Employer Award
BeifESF
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Overview

We are an environmental protection and cleaning services enterprise
We are committed to increasing the efficiency of resources utilization
and enhancing our environmental performance by adopting world-class
environmental protection practices in our business dealings.

We strive to work towards a ‘green’ and sustainable working environment
by improving energy efficiency, addressing waste management,
supporting environmental education and promoting the idea of recycling
and reusing. Our Group has established an environmental management
system and relevant policies and procedures for our business that
meet the international industry specific environmental standards and
obtained ISO 14001:2015 certification. The operation and administrative
department constantly review our internal operational practices to
ensure that they are in line with the concept of sustainable corporate
development. Policies and measures were strengthened and improved
this year so as to effectively manage undesirable environmental impact.

Our Group is currently undergoing an expansion of the environmental
and cleaning services business in the PRC, especially in Shanghai, the
PRC. It is expected that the scale and quality of services provided by our
operations will be further increased and improved in the following years.
Since our Group’s businesses are mainly based in Hong Kong during the
Reporting Period, this ESG Report will mainly focus on the environmental
issues and relevant measures that are applicable to the operating units in
Hong Kong.

To achieve the environmental goals, the Group has implemented the
following measures:

e Comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations;

° Identify, assess and mitigate all potential environmental impacts
associated with the Group’s activities;

e  Commit leadership and develop a strong culture of environmental
stewardship within the entire workforce; and

° Make resources and systems available, with the provision of
necessary training to empower our employees to fulfill our
environmental responsibilities.

BiR
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Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant environmental
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including but
not limited to Environmental Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed non-
compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group in relation
to environmental issues.

Emissions

The Group’s air emissions principally derived from vehicles, while
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions mainly resulted from various types
of activities, including but not limited to direct emissions from vehicles,
indirect energy emissions from electricity, and indirect emissions from
waste paper disposal.

In the absence of production process, the direct GHG emissions
generated from our business activities are relatively minimal, and our
services do not contribute to material impacts on the environment.

Nevertheless, we have implemented various measures to minimize
emissions, thus reduce the impact on the environment.
Motor vehicles

During the Reporting Period, we owned a fleet of 18 vehicles for our
business operations, as well as transporting our management team
members, guests and clients.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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The total mileage travelled of the vehicles was approximately 392,129
kilometers (2020: 324,592 kilometers). The total fuel consumption of the
vehicles was approximately 125,888 liters (2020: 138,173 liters). Due to
an increased number of projects and distance of the project sites, the
total distance travelled by the vehicles increased, resulting in an increase
of the amount of NO, and PM emissions when compared to the year
ended 30 June 2020, while a decrease in fuel consumption despite an
increase in distance travelled is attributed to the majority of vehicles
are diesel vehicles. The types of key air pollutants and their respective
emission data are as follows:

RETREBERBY3R120NB(ZE-F
F 13245021 E) c AEMMERBEREERL
125,888 ( —Z = Z4F : 138,173F) - AAIA
BEZEUKLIBE BB EE I - REBEITFEE
BN - ERAS Y RBRMERERES
—EoTFNAZTHIEFEERER MK
EUEREIERR B B R T hERD - 2A
BRI RERAERAE - EBERSLME
RIS BHEREENT

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Unit BE-E—-—F BE-B_BF
Major Emissions FEHERY B NRA=THLEE NRA=THLEE
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) AAlLy g 1,672,344 1,416,462
Sulphur Oxides (SO,) k=Rt g 2,023 2,034
Particulate Matter (PM) TR g% 128,520 107,102
Data on Greenhouse Gas Emission S B B
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Unit BE-Z-—fF BE-Z-ZF
Types of Emissions BER Rl B NA=THLFE NA=THLFE
Scope 1 - Direct Emissions EE1 - EEHEN
Motor vehicles HE kg CO%e 334,495 367,0812
FR-ERER
Scope 2 - Energy Indirect EE2— 5ER B EHERK
Emissions
Electricitys ESWIE kg CO.e 8,620 —4
Fr-@tikgs
Scope 3 - Other Indirect Ei[E3 — H AR HER
Emissions
Disposal of paper PRI ARER kg CO.e 7,769 12,771
Fr_ftRKE=
Business travel by air PRS2 kT T kg COse 893 2,610
Fr-_SixgE
Total Emissions of GHG BEREBAYER
Total emissions PR kg CO.e 351,777 382,4622
FR-ERER
Emissions intensity == kg CO.e/thousand 0.99 1.11

revenue

TR ALK E
8/ Tz
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2 The fuel consumption of different vehicles has been standardised for better
comparison, and thus the figure for the year ended 30 June 2020 has been
re-examined and restated.

3 For Scope 2 greenhouse gas emission (indirect emission from consumption
of purchased electricity), the latest Baseline Emission Factors for Regional
Power Grids issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC,
and the latest carbon dioxide equivalent emissions intensity of electricity sold
by Hong Kong Electric are adopted.

4 As the electricity bills for our Hong Kong head office were included in the
estate maintenance fee, thus the relevant data was not disclosed for the year
ended 30 June 2020.

To uphold the principles of sustainable development with a view of
balancing business growth, we are committed to reducing our carbon
footprint, and aim to maintain our greenhouse gas emissions intensity at
or below 1.20 tonnes CO,e per thousand revenue in the next reporting
period through adopting the measures specified in the subsection
headed “Electricity and Energy Usage” and also the following mitigating
measures:

Fleet Management

At the end of each month, we would obtain a summary of fuel
consumption from our service provider in order to monitor the usage
of fuel of all our vehicles. Furthermore, regular maintenance checks are
performed for all the vehicles to enhance fuel consumption efficiency,
to ensure road safety and to keep carbon dioxide emission at their
minimum.

Air-conditioning

Employees are encouraged to set the offices’ air-conditioners at a
comfortable temperature (best at 25.5 degrees Celsius) and all the
air-conditioners that are not in use should be switched off. The Group
has also put reminder notices at prominent places to raise employees’
awareness of electricity consumption and energy conservation.

Travelling by air

During the Reporting Period, there were 4 business air travels taken by
the employees (2020: 13 times) and thus resulting 893 kilograms of CO,
emissions (2020: approximately 2,610 kilograms). Employees are only
required to travel by air, when necessary, otherwise, we would arrange
telephone or video conference calls instead of face-to-face meetings to
reduce the carbon emissions that are indirectly caused by air travel.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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Use of Resources

We always endeavor to promote sustainability and aim to cease
resources wastage that provokes detrimental harm to the environment.
Various measures have been implemented to attain the goal of
using resources efficiently. These measures have been effectively
communicated to all levels of staff, ensuring all staff members understand
clearly the importance of conserving energy and make full use of the
available resources at work.

Based on our operating model of the environmental and cleaning
business, most of our water, electricity and energy consumption
is directly provided by our customers or publicly sourced by the
government and such consumption quantity is not controllable by us.
Nevertheless, the Group has formulated policies and educated the
employees on the efficient use of resources including energy, water and
other raw materials in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.
Internal environmental review has been conducted regularly to assess the
environmental impact of the group business activities so that the energy
and water usage can be closely monitored. Measures that have been
taken to minimize the usage of resources are detailed below.

Water Usage

The existing water supply adequately meets our daily operational
needs, which is mainly used for cleaning and sanitation, and we have
no difficulties in sourcing water. The water consumption was 89 cubic
meters and the intensity of total water consumption was 0.08 cubic
meters per employee (2020: Not discloseds). We will make continuous
efforts in working towards the target of maintaining the intensity of total
water consumption at or below 0.10 cubic meters per employee in the
next reporting period.

We encourage our employees working in the headquarters to consume
resources only where appropriate, and turn off the faucets tightly. We
also fix dripping taps immediately, and install flow restrictors and spray
nozzles where possible.

Our on-site employees are required to follow a standard water pollution
control procedure in order to reduce water pollution. Wastewater
containing bleach, buffering cream or specific detergent is diluted before
it is discharged into sewers. To enhance our employees’ knowledge of
wastewater discharge, relevant ordinances and environmental measures
are introduced to our employees.

5 As the water bills for our Hong Kong head office were included in the estate
maintenance fee, thus the relevant data was not disclosed for the year
ended 30 June 2020.
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Electricity and Energy Usage

Our energy consumption results principally from electricity consumption.
Our electricity consumption was 11,402 kWh and the intensity of
electricity consumption was 9.84 kWh per employee (2020: Not
discloseds). We endeavour to establish a low-carbon culture and work
towards the target of keeping the total energy consumption intensity
below 12 kWh per employee in the next reporting period .

As part of our many initiatives to reduce energy consumption, we have
adopted and implemented the following measures to preserve energy
and reduce electricity usage:

e Turn off lighting and appliances that are not in use to reduce energy
consumption;

e Turn off air conditioners and lights during non-office hours and in
idle rooms;

° Employees are required to put computers and other devices into
sleeping mode or turn them off when they are not in use (such as
during customer visit and lunch time) during business hours;

° Regular maintenance of office equipment such as air conditioners,
computers, lights, refrigerators, etc. to ensure they are operating
efficiently;

e  Printing machine in the office is set at energy-saving mode by
default, and the sleeping mode is automatically turned on, when not
in use for a certain time interval;

e  Used printer cartridges at the head office are sent back to the
manufacturers for recycling; and

e  Place posters “Saving Electricity; Turn off the Light when Leaving”
at prominent places to encourage employees to reduce energy
consumption.

Generation of Waste

Solid waste is mainly generated from the Group’s day-to-day operations,
including, but not limited to office-use paper, office waste and waste
generated from the provision of our cleaning service.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but not limited
to the Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed material
non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by us.

6 As the electricity bills for our Hong Kong head office were included in the
estate maintenance fee, thus the relevant data was not disclosed for the year
ended 30 June 2020.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

BHREEFREA

HFIMBEREIRRAENER - BIFIMBERER
114 TEK  MENRBEERERESR
9.84TRF (=T T4 : WHIMFEe) - T
TESAERR AL - W E DR TERE BB ER
EREEREENERER12TARMNER -

YR ST SRR — 205 - RPEIER
WEM NG > ASMEERERDENE
A

o FBARARMEAMRIAKLER - R ERE

s BRFMAKELHEERHEMNZERLER
AH

s REEREXKREAREMEEMKREBER
ERE(EF & R TERR) 8 AR
A KRR

o  EMMEEZS - B REAMKBEERA
REETREAEREERREE

o MAEMITENMBRRE BEEEEL - i1
R—BEBANMER BEREXS 88
B

o  AHEERBERITEIRES K PR RIRE
AHETTE K

e RERMUERMIBHOE

B BEFEEFH
&SR SEME BRI RERE o

EEEEY

AEENEREYIEELARTEEE B
BARRPLRE - MAZTERY RREHEZR
ARTGPREE AV RE R ©

RImERA - BB TERMAEERTENH
BEREBZRERD - BREEFEREEN(E
YR B RDI) o I B S FEETHRERH
EATEREMIIF -

6 HREBRINEBSAMELEE AR
BE-_Z-_ZFENA=1THILFEWERER
BB -




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT ®i% « 2R ERKRE

During the course of our business operations in providing cleaning RIS 2 EBR P IR HSZ2IR&E L G
services and money lending services, no packing materials were used, EERGE - WEFEBEEYE - EiEH
and thus, no data in this respect is available. [N N6

During the Reporting Period, the amount of hazardous and non- RJ®EHR - FIEEANESREZEEYHE S

hazardous wastes produced are as follows: wm
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Unit BE-B-—F BE-B-FF
Types of Wastes EEZEWE R By NAZ+THLEEE ARA=ZTHLEEE
Hazardous Waste’ BEEEW
Chemical disinfectants {LEHFEI kgF 5 102,979 -
Pesticides Syl kgT 7 1,186 -
Total weight WEE kgT = 104,165 -
Intensity of waste generated FELXBREYZEE ko/ 0.30 -
thousand revenue
of environmental
and cleaning
services
Fr/BRERER
BR#% 2 T T s
Non-hazardous Waste BEBEZEY
Paper #EaR kgFr= 1,618 2,661
Towels EM kgT e 2,104 2,155
Gloves FE kg5 2,094 2,073
Scouring cloth Bkt kg7 373 279
Garbage bag BIIRER kgF 5 7,420 -5
Total weight WEE kgT = 13,609 7,168
Intensity of waste generated FMELEEYZE  kg/ 0.04 0.02

thousand
revenue

T/ Frls

7 As the chemical or clinical hazardous waste generated from the operationsis 7
minimal and immaterial, thus the relevant data was not disclosed for the year
ended 30 June 2020.

8 As the data of garbage bag used was not available, thus the relevant data @
was not disclosed for the year ended 30 June 2020.
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Our generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste depends greatly
on the type of cleaning services provided, considering the uncertainties
of the type of future cleaning projects, we target the increases in intensity
of hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste generated to be no more
than 10% and 20% respectively, for the next reporting period compared
to the intensity level in the year ended 30 June 2021.

In order to achieve the target and alleviate the pressure on landfills
and promote environmental friendliness within the Group, we have
implemented various measures to encourage recycling of office supplies
and other materials.

Reduction of printing and paper usage

We require our staff members to make full use of office paper before
its disposal and have incorporated various measures into our business
operations. For example, we implement the policy of double-sided
printing and copying, and disseminate information by electronic means
whenever possible to reduce the consumption of paper. We encourage
our employees to avoid the use of disposable and non-recyclable
products, and to use refillable stationeries instead of one-off stationeries.
Recycling bins are also available to collect used products, such as waste
papers and cartridges toners, at the headquarters. We will continue to
leverage the use of technology for communication with our employees
and customers, aiming to go paperless.

Reduction of waste generated from the provision of our services

Our employees are encouraged to organize, maintain and clean the
garbage and recycled waste holding areas; recycled waste is sorted
into appropriate receptacles. Appropriate signage is placed on the bins,
stating what type of waste or recyclables should be put in the bin.

Moreover, our Group policy requires employees to bring back all the
bottles provided them. If cleaning chemicals have been used up,
employees are not allowed to dispose of the empty bottles that keep
the cleaning chemicals without proper consent. Empty bottles must be
collected and refilled with cleaning chemicals for reuse.
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Climate Change

To address the global concern about climate change that affects
not only the environmental systems but also our daily lives, we have
considered the climate-related issues and incorporated them into its risk
management system to enhance our resilience and adaptive capacity to
potential climate change impacts.

Acute physical risks can arise from extreme weather events such as
flooding and storms and chronic physical risks can arise from sustained
high temperatures, while transition risks may result from changes
in environmental-related regulations. Extreme weather events may
impact our operations or our customers’ assets, which in turn cause
damage to our assets or our customers’ properties leaving them unable
to repay their loan. Upon evaluation, our Group provides an array of
services to customers that are not located in high-risk flood areas, and
thus the risk that such extreme weather events impacting our assets,
operations or our customers’ assets are relatively low. While sustained
high temperatures may increase the risk of heat stroke of our employees
working outdoors. We have established a safety management system
and provided safety guidelines to employees working under these events.
As for the potential transition risks, our Group continues to monitor the
regulatory environment, such as the recent passage of municipal solid
waste charging, to ensure that our services meet the demands and
expectations of our customers and regulators.

It is expected that potential extreme weather conditions, sustained high
temperatures, changes in environmental-related regulations would not
result in a material impact on our Group’s operation. Nevertheless, we
continue to monitor the climate-related risks and implement relevant
measures to minimize the potential physical and transition risks.
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SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices

We value our employees and focus on building a safe and pleasant
working environment for them. We offer attractive remuneration packages
as well as provide plenty of internal and external training opportunities for
our employees, in order to attract, motivate and retain the right people.

Before the start of employment, employees are required to enter into an
employment contract, where the duties and responsibilities of his or her
role are clearly stated. Moreover, we have a set of personnel policies
and procedures as well as a staff handbook that set out our standard
internal procedures relating to recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, compensation, dismissal, diversity
of origins, anti-discrimination and other human resources treatments and
benefits of our employees, etc. The relevant policies for employment and
labour practices are listed as follows.

Compliance

We strictly comply with the requirements of the Employment Ordinance,
the Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance, the Labour Law and the Social Security Law as well as other
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC which cover
employment protection and benefits. During the Reporting Period, we
complied with all laws and regulations in relation to employment that
have a significant impact on us. No confirmed significant non-compliance
incidents were noted by the Group.

Employment

Employees are valuable assets to the Group and the key driving force
of our sustainable performance. We welcome people with different
backgrounds to join our team to add value to our pool of professional
expertise of the industry and bring in innovative ideas. As at 30 June
2021, the Group employed a total of 1,159 members of staff, with 1,090
employees in Hong Kong and 69 employees in the PRC, 939 full-time
and 220 part-time employees.
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The following table sets forth the breakdowns of our employees by TXRHIN T - —FX A=+ HIZMERI RF

gender and by age group as at 30 June 2021: HRARRIE 7 e B RAAE -

Male Female Total
Age Group Fie4a 5B B fog i3 Fb
18-25 18E255% 5 2 7
26-35 26 2£3575% 13 24 37
36-45 3624575 66 94 160
46-55 46E555% 74 234 308
56-65 562655k 102 338 440
Above 65 655A = 69 138 207
Total Fb 329 830 1,159

During the Reporting Period, a total of 631 members of staff were RREHK - £EFBLTEH - HBE631EEE
dismissed or resigned from their positions in Hong Kong and the PRC. &R {E sk BH T EL BT B Bk R ET 8uE

The statistics for employee turnover rates are as follows: AN
Number of
Employee Turnover Rate
EEHE P =S

By Gender BRI B2
Male B 219 67%
Female peqi 412 50%
By Age Group RERHERE D
18-25 18E£255% 6 86%
26-35 262 355% 38 103%
36-45 36E455% 80 50%
46-55 462555% 180 58%
56-65 562 655% 236 54%
Above 65 6555 A _E 91 44%
By Geographical Region ZitE 85
Hong Kong 55 614 56%
PRC EF' 17 25%
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Anti-discrimination and integrity

The Group strives to create a fair and impartial working environment
where all employees are treated equally and respectfully. Any kinds of
discrimination or harassment based on the employees’ gender, age,
marital status, race, sexual orientation and religion at our workplace are
strongly prohibited. Employees are entitled to equal opportunity in terms
of treatment and promotion. A set of policies and procedures is in place
detailing the aim, complaint procedure, and appeal procedure on equal
opportunities. During the recruitment process, we only focus on the
capability and attitude of the interviewee, thus people with disabilities are
also welcome to be part of our Group.

We always listen and respond to the requests of our employees. It is the
goal of the Group to create a friendly and peaceful working environment.
We encourage our employees to provide feedback in relation to
any employment-related matters, especially when they encounter
any unpleasant or undesired treatments from colleagues or senior
management. Employees may report issues to his or her department
head and lodge a formal complaint. Any complaints received will be kept
confidential. If any unfair treatments and harassments are found and
confirmed, the Group will issue a warning in written form to the employee
who has done the wrongdoing and may dismiss him or her depending on
the seriousness of the incident.

By adopting the above practices, we comply with, in all material respects,
the corresponding ordinances and its respective codes of practices,
which includes the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487), Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 527), and Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602)
supported by the Hong Kong Equal Opportunities Commission (“EOC”).

Attract and retain talents

Our employees are our most valuable asset and we value their rights
and welfare. Our remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing
market practices and are determined on the basis of the competency,
qualifications and experience of the individual employees. Management
has been constantly reviewing the staff remuneration package and
employees’ promotion opportunities. Adjustments will be made
periodically, to conform with the market standard in order to retain talents
and ensure the offer is competitive as compared to our competitors in
the industry. A standard package includes basic salary and the statutory
pension benefit such as the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) in Hong
Kong, the social insurance and housing provident fund in the PRC. We
also offer discretionary bonus based on the individual performance of the
employees and our financial performance.
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Welfare and benefits

To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, we offer various welfare
and benefits to our employees. For instance, employees are entitled
to all public holidays as well as paid leave in accordance with the
Employment Ordinance and their job level. Long service award is offered
as an appreciation for the contribution and dedication of long-serving
employees. In addition, we offer discounted dental care plan to our
employees, which their spouse and children can also enjoy.

We emphasize the unity and harmony at work. Over the years, our
Human Resources Department has made efforts in organizing activities
to strengthen the bonding of employees within the Group. Annual dinner
and casual gatherings were organized this year, which provide a platform
for our employees to mingle and have fun.

Health and Safety

We aim to provide a safe and healthy working environment to our
employees, and encourage them to achieve a balance between
work and a healthy lifestyle. Our safety management system which is
formulated based on the requirements of the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) of Hong Kong is accredited to the leading
international standard of ISO 45001.

To ensure all accidents and injuries are properly recorded, and are
handled accordingly by the relevant employees, The Group has a
comprehensive policy for accidents reporting procedures. During the
Reporting Period, there were a total of 47 cases of work-related injuries
and a total of 1,386 lost days due to work injury; no record of work-
related fatality was recorded. Since the provision of our services may
expose our employees to a certain degree of occupational hazards, all
work-related health and safety performance, including work procedures,
working at height, occupational road risk, and machinery safety, are
closely monitored by the Operation and Administrative Department of
the Group. We continue to reflect on our existing safety policies and is
committed to continuously adapt and improve its occupational safety
measures as would be necessary.

For the year
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Number of injuries TERE 47 42 72
Lost days BATERH 1,386 1,675 2,194
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Employees are required to receive training on how to use relevant
machines, tools and materials and must be well equipped before they
provide services to our clients. Supervisors are assigned to take the
responsibility of overseeing the operations, make immediate responses,
and notify the management if the hazards in the workplace are noted.
Furthermore, we conduct periodic risk assessment in order to timely
identify, evacuate and mitigate any new risks from workplace and
to ultimately provide our employees with a healthy and safe working
environment.

Employees are also required to familiarize themselves with and follow
our “Occupational Health and Safety Plan”, which details the safety
requirements when performing services. For instance, the use of personal
protective equipment such as proper gloves, safety goggles, masks, use
of appropriate tools for picking up garbage, proper use of chemicals as
per standards etc., to reduce the risk of accidental injuries.

Safety rules are translated into various languages to cater for the
different needs of our employees. The Operation and Administrative
Department provides updates on health and safety issues to the staff
members on a regular basis. The Group has incorporated safety
management awareness into every stage of our operations. Our safety
culture and policies are also introduced to our contractors and partners
by incorporating safety requirements into the terms of the service
agreements.

In the midst of COVID-19 pandemic, we had developed contingency
plans to ensure that all practicable preventive and protective measures
are in place to minimize the risk of spread of the coronavirus, including
but not limited to employees’ health declarations, daily temperature
checks, mask wearing and social distancing requirements. We pay close
attention to latest developments regarding the COVID-19 pandemic and
regularly reviews such plans to ensure their adequacy and suitability.

Development and Training

We believe that investing in employees through training will help
promote job satisfaction, work motivation and staff loyalty. Different
types of training are provided to employees to make sure that they
are acknowledged with updated information and possess sufficient
knowledge and skills to provide quality services to our customers. For
instance, training includes but is not limited to driving safety, business
writing, operational training, orientation, as well as information technology
security.
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The total number of training hours for the Reporting Period was
approximately 25,368 hours and the average training hours per employee
was approximately 22 hours. The average number of training hours
completed by each male and female employee were approximately 24
hours and 21 hours respectively. The average number of training hours
completed by junior staff, senior staff and manager, and management
were approximately 23 hours, 1 hour, and 8 hours, respectively. The
percentage of total employees trained was 28%, and the percentage of
employees trained by gender and by employee category are as follows:

Percentage of employees
trained by gender
RUEPESNZIEET DL
2%
0%

Male
Estid
M Female

Zit

Continuous education enhances the competitiveness of the employees
as well as the Group in the industry. The Group is committed to providing
our employees resources and opportunities, so that they can have clear
career goals to progress within the Group.

Labour Standards

We are committed to complying with the Employment Ordinance and
other relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC in relation
to employees’ protection and benefits. Every employment is subject
to a stringent internal review process that involves a well-established
procedure to verify a candidate’s personal information, in order to avoid
misrepresentation and employment of child labour. For instance, the
staff member responsible for recruitment collects the identity proofs
from the candidates to ensure that the age of the candidates fulfill the
requirements as stipulated by the law.

The employment of forced and child labour is strictly prohibited. If
management discovers there is any employment of forced or child
labour, we will immediately terminate the employment concerned. During
the Reporting Period, all employees are over the age of 18, and have
been properly employed in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable laws and regulations. No confirmed non-compliance incidents
or grievances were noted by the Group.
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Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group places emphasis on supply chain management, which
is achieved by maintaining long-term relationships with credible and
reputable suppliers that offer quality products and services. Environmental
and social factors are taken into considerations when choosing our
suppliers. Suppliers with certain qualifications, such as certification of
ISO 14001 or ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification or ISO
45001 or other accreditation, etc. will be given preference.

In addition to the quality of product or service, the suppliers’
environmental value and awareness of occupational health and safety
are considered during supplier selection. We have a guideline on
procurement of detergents, pesticides and other work-related materials,
and set out clear considerable factors when choosing suppliers’
products.

We continuously evaluate the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors in
respect to products supplied, service quality, reliability, environmental
performance and occupational health and safety. We also consider
the principle of green procurement and constantly evaluate the use of
materials to avoid overstocking and squandering resources.

[t is our wish to collaborate with our suppliers in the development
and application of innovation, participation in production process
enhancement for the continuous optimization of supply chain capabilities
as well as fulfilment of our responsibilities in social and environmental
protection.

Currently, we have a total of 29 major suppliers, amongst them, 16
suppliers are located in Hong Kong and 13 suppliers are located in the
PRC.

Product and Service Responsibility

At the Group, our primary focus is to provide high quality services to our
customers. We value the importance of confidentiality of our customers
by protecting their personal information. For advertising, we strictly
comply with all relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and in the
PRC to avoid conveying any incorrect messages to the public.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations, and no complaints were received in relation to our services
provided. No non-compliance issues or grievances were noted by the
Group.
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Customer Management

For the environmental protection business, the Group places great
emphasis on quality control. We have obtained ISO 9001:1015, ISO
14001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018, and are committed to delivering
professional services and achieving customer satisfaction. To understand
clients’ needs, we conduct site assessments and communicate with our
clients before commencing services.

We have a comprehensive set of policies and procedures on “Quality
Management Plan”, a framework that focuses on business goals and
objectives. During the performance of our services, our employees will
carry out regular check on the service quality, including services delivered
by the Group’s own employees and third-party service providers, and
record occasions of substandard performance and any follow-up actions
taken.

Moreover, management members would hold regular meetings with
on-site employees to review and discuss various aspects of operations
to ensure that the services provided meet clients’ expectations. We
continuously collect feedback from clients about service quality,
environmental and workplace safety performance, and application of
material and tools. To enhance clients’ confidence in the Group, we
promptly investigate the root cause of unsatisfying services, provide
corrective solutions and carry out immediate remedial and preventive
actions in response to the complaints received from our clients.

For the money lending business, we provide one-on-one service to our
customers and design loan repayment schedule which best suits the
needs of our customers. Service features, terms and conditions, and any
associated risks are clearly communicated to the intending borrowers by
the Group’s employees. We understand that good customer service is
essential in maintaining long-term relationships with our customers.

The mission of our customer service emphasizes the provision of quality
services, effective communication and responsive solution. The interests
of our customers are placed at top priority.

Business Ethics

In order to build customer trust and loyalty, we have set out rules
to reduce the risk of employees leaking confidential information. For
instance, every employee is required to enter into a confidentiality
agreement which forbids him/her to disclose confidential or proprietary
information to parties outside the Group, either during or after
employment, without the Group’s authorization.
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The confidentiality agreement specifies the content and scope of
confidentiality, obligations of the employees, and liability for the breach
of agreement. Disclosing or copying any of the Group’s trade secret
without the consent from management is strictly prohibited. If there are
any employees discovered of misappropriating customers’ private data,
the Group will dismiss the employees concerned and reserve the right to
legal proceedings.

We endeavor to protect the information system, prevent virus attack and
the leakage of clients’ information. Training relating to cyber security and
relevant risk management is provided to our employees to enhance the
employees’ awareness of cyber security.

Since our employees have access to personal data of the customers,
it is important for us to ensure the privacy of customers’ information.
The Group continues to monitor, review and, when necessary, update
its privacy principles and policies to ensure they are complying with
all relevant laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period, the
Group complied with all relevant law and regulations in relation to data
protection, including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and Intellectual Property (Miscellaneous Amendments)
Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group.

Advertising

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements. During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but
not limited to the Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, which
constitutes a significant influence to the Group’s business.

The Group strictly complies with the advertising requirements. All kinds
of advertisements, such as leaflet or websites, are carefully drafted and
avoiding the use of false descriptions to mislead customers. Al final drafts
of the advertisement must be approved by our management before bulk
printing.

Moreover, we have designated employees to monitor notices, news
and information in the media in connection with tenders relating to
environmental hygiene services and airline catering support services
works to ensure that we strictly comply with local laws and regulations
regarding advertising and labelling.

During the Reporting Period, no confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group.
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Trademark Management

We have registered trademarks which are important to our business. We
regularly monitor whether our trademarks are being infringed. We are
committed to protecting intellectual property rights which we handle with
great care during our daily operations.

Anti-corruption

We clearly understand that financial crime can have significant
consequences to our customers and us. Moreover, the community and
the economies in which we operate in can also be greatly impacted.
Therefore, we are committed to making efforts to address the issues of
corruption, bribery and money laundering.

We maintain and implement our own anti-bribery, anti-corruption and
anti-fraud practices and procedures. We do not support, nor tolerate,
any corrupt practices and making or receiving of bribery payments. We
have established a clear policy to guide our employees in this regard. In
addition, the employment contracts of our employees include the code
of conduct for them to follow. All employees are expected to discharge
their duties with integrity and self-discipline, and they should abstain from
engaging in bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering activities or
any activities which might exploit the Group’s or client’s interests.

Directors of the Company should declare in writing for any business
which he/she has any direct or indirect financial interest in, which
competes with the Group or the Group has business dealings with. The
Group will take disciplinary action against the employees who breach the
rules. The employees may also be subject to termination of employment.
Where criminality is suspected, a report will be made to the relevant
regulators or law enforcement authorities if necessary.

Whistle-blowers can report verbally or in writing to immediate supervisor
or Audit Committee members for any suspicious activities, including any
request, receipt or acceptance of any forms of benefits from any persons,
companies or organizations that may cause conflict of interest with the
Group, and misconducts which are related to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money-laundering. The whistle-blower’s identity remains anonymous
and is protected throughout the investigation; the whistle-blower should
also not be placed into any disadvantaged position in relation to the
employment.
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In particular to our money lending business, we developed an Anti-
Money Laundering (“AML”) policy and perform due diligence and Know-
Your-Customer procedures on all customers before accepting loan
applications. Documents, including ID/passport, address proof, etc.,
will be obtained before entering into business relationships with our
customers. Our Group strictly follows the AML and Counter-Terrorist
Financing guideline issued by the Hong Kong S.A.R. Licensed Money
Lenders Association Limited to ascertain the background of the
customers, to identify suspicious money-laundering behaviours, and to
report any suspicious transactions. Under the current practice, when
it comes to the attention of the employees that a customer may be
involved in any money laundering activities, the case will be reported to
a member of senior management who will then decide whether it should
be reported to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit. During the Reporting
Period, we provided 4 classroom trainings to all employees involved in
the provision of money lending services, including the directors. The
trainings were held by our compliance officer and each training sessions
lasted for 3 hours.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but not limited
to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong. There was no
corruption or bribery incident reported within the Group.

Community Investment

We believe that corporate social responsibility is the backbone of
corporate values, and continue to dedicate time and effort to give back
to the local community. For the ten consecutive years, we have been
named a “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
in recognition of our contributions to support community building,
environmental conservation, and people development.

During the Reporting Period, our Group supported the Fu Hong Society
but we had not organized any community and charity activities, to reduce
the risk of virus transmission in the community and employee infection.
Our Group will continue to explore more public welfare activities in the
future after the COVID-19 situation improves and restrictions are lifted.
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
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KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote | Supply Chain Management
BRI environmentally preferable products HrEEEE
$51ZB5.4 and services when selecting suppliers,

and how they are implemented and
monitored.
R R EE ZAREREM
NARISEIED] - AR BRBEHIEIMITR

N
BERF A ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT ®i% « 2R ERKRE

Aspect
=]

Description
i pud

Chapter/Section
=x:0]

Remarks

ik

B6: Product and Service Responsibility
B6 : Em&IRIFEE

General Information on: Product and Service
Disclosure (@ the policies; and Responsibility
— M= (b) compliance with relevant laws and | &M &REE (T
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
ERAMREHESNREHREREZS -
BE - RERALEEE A REROTES
@ BE: K
b) BEFHBEITAREATENHEEE
ERBROINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Not applicable As we provide cleaning services
RASRIA N shipped subject to recalls for safety and | i 7 and financing services, we do
#51%B6.1 health reasons. not have any physical products
EENEEXERAHT AL R EERE to sell.
BhHmARWK AL BREMUREERIRE R E
RRTS - R AT A fr] AT 4
ENEREM -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Product and Service
RARIE K complaints received and how they are Responsibility —
1E1ZB6.2 dealt with. Customer Management
BEEANEMMBRBORFBENRE | EnkRBEEE—
- ®PEE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Product and Service
RASRIE K observing and protecting intellectual Responsibility —
E1EB6.3 property rights. Trademark Management
it t g R R MAERGAED - | EmEREEE -
BIEE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process | Product and Service
RIRAE and recall procedures. Responsibility
1512B6.4 HVE S E BIR R E mBIUAR T Em&RBEE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection | Product and Service
RASRIE N and privacy policies, how they are Responsibility —
FE1EB6.5 implemented and monitored. Business Ethics

il BE ERRERARBBER - AR
HERERRTT REEERITE o

EmMRBEE—
P ERT

EHERERAR ik 2021 @




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT &% - #HE&KE

Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EmE i pud E=x:0] HE
B7: Anti-corruption
B7 : RES
General Information on: Anti-corruption
Disclosure | (a) the policies; and RES
—RH = (o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
BRNILFERE - B - BGEFROERE
@@ BEK: &
(o) ETFHBEITABEATZENERE
ERBROINER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption
RASRAE regarding corrupt practices brought k&S
FE1ZB7.1 against the issuer or its employees

during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RREHAHEHITASHEEBRLL D
BRENETHRARMNEE MFAGER ©

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures, how | Anti-corruption
RASRIE K they are implemented and monitored. RES
FE1EB7.2 P M - ARBBERITRERT

bz
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training Anti-corruption
RASRIE K provided to directors and staff. RES
1E1EB7.3 B RERREIRHENREFEI -

B8: Community Investment

B8 : (@I E

General Policies on community engagement Community Investment
Disclosure | to understand the needs of the HEERE
— R EE communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
BT B2 ER T REEMELERT
ZEMEREEZBHEHEZELRAEN
BUER e
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Community Investment
RASRAE (e.g. education, environmental concerns, | ftEZE
151%B8.1 labour needs, health, culture, sport).
I ERBE(FINHE BEET 8
BORK - 2 - b - 8BE) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed Community Investment
RASRIE K (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. MHEEE
¥51EB8.2 ERTEHRAEBANE RIS ER

f) o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A% B

@ pakertilly
R e [ PR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PPS INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PPS
International (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 91 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BIYRBERE
BEBZRAERATDRR

(RHASHEEMKZNERRF])

=R

AAZBED (AT RS 1)) B BT 5B 591
F179OR EMIERAR AR REMBART AT
SR ESE])NERAMBRE - HEREME
BEBENR T —FA=THNEEHTE
AREE - BEZALFENGRARER &
AHEakEMEMERER  REERZEFHRM
FERERER  UNGEMBHRERME 8
BEEestHEME -

BPIRA - GREVBRRCBREFTEGTHHA
(AL EIAE])MBEMNEEY %R
SRAN([EBMBHREEN D EELAFHR
M EEER-_T-—FRNA=THZHBR
AR BEEREBEZBILFEZHAME
RERFEARERE  YEREFERRED
ZIBERTEZRRE -

RREX%

BACRERESMASRONEEETE
([ FBFER ) ETRE - HPIREP
[ B EHR AP RERNEE ] —fE—
TR MEZFRETNEE - RFOIRES
AEMAENEX SRR EEETAI(HE
Bl DB BE5E - MERMATREST
AETEMEREE - RIFIEE - RAMES
MBENREER T LEEARMNETERL
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group recognised loans and interest
receivables recorded initially at fair value
and subsequently at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
As at 30 June 2021, the carrying amount of
the loans receivable and interest receivables
were HK$78,729,000 and HK$805,000
respectively.

The measurement of expected credit losses
(“ECL”) requires the application of significant
judgements which include the identification
of exposures with a significant deterioration
in credit quality, and assumptions used in the
ECL model such as the probabilities of defaultt,
loss given default, expected future cash flows
and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

Due to the significance of the aggregated
amount of loans and interest receivables
(representing approximately 27% of total
assets) and inherent uncertainty in such
estimates, we considered this as a key audit
matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables
Refer to notes 2.10(), 2.12, 16 and 28(a) of the consolidated financial statements

Our audit procedures in this area included:

obtaining and reviewing the sample of
loan agreements (including supplemental
agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the
principal amounts, interest rates, maturity
dates and other information to the
Group’s accounting records;

testing of controls designed and
applied in the process of approving and
granting loans, subsequent monitoring
of repayment status and of any loan
extensions;

assessing the effectiveness of key controls
over the application of the impairment
methodology, the governance for the ECL
models, inputs and assumptions used by
the Group in calculating the ECL;

assessing the reasonableness of the
Group’s ECL models and the Group’s
criteria for assessing if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk, default
or credit-impaired, and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on
a lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative
assessment;

recalculation of loan interest income
recognised on a sample basis;

obtaining direct confirmation of loan
balances from the borrowers on a sample
basis; and

reviewing subsequent settlement records
and corroborating enquiries with the
management about the reasons for
not considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balances.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A% B

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 September 2021
Tong Wai Hang

Practising certificate number: P06231
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

M ALE 32 For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZ—ZE=—F A=t HILFE
?E‘ = | Eﬁ% (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

2021 2020
—E—F —E-THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BfaE FET FHET
Revenue Wz 3
— Service income from environmental —IRRRFR 2 BRIEWA
and cleaning 342,702 328,675
— Interest income from money lending — BEZERS 2 AL B WA 12,073 16,711
354,775 345,386
Cost of services R %K AR (322,480) (306,733)
Gross profit ER 32,295 38,653
Other income, other gains and other HABYA ~ EAb s & HAb
losses and impairments E51E A SR E 4 17,189 (45,343)
Selling and marketing expenses THE MY (2,985) (2,889)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (24,188) (22,259)
Finance costs BhE KA 5(a) (1,464) (1,469)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBATDEF (&) 5 20,847 (33,307)
Income tax expense e~ 6 (167) (2,510)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERHEF,(EE) 20,680 (35,817)
Attributable to: BT ALES:
— owners of the Company —ARRREEA 19,192 (36,719)
- non-controlling interests — IR R A 1,488 902
20,680 (35,817)
HK cents HK cents
a4l il
Earnings/(loss) per share BRERN,(FE) 9
— Basic and diluted —EAXREE (6.80)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEREREMEEKRER o wase n i g dats (HATEAI)

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —TEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BfaE FHET FAT
Profit/(loss) for the year FRER(BR) (35,817)
Other comprehensive income/(loss), Hftt2HEKE (&E)
net of nil tax HBREBE
ltems that may be reclassified HigrgeEHnaEEm Y
subsequently to profit or loss: HH -
— Exchange differences on translation —MEEINERE I Bk 2
of financial statements of foreign EH =R
operations (318)
- Exchange differences released upon — A B R RE AR
deregistration of a subsidiary EHZR 4 -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FRZEKE (HR)EHE
for the year (36,135)
Attributable to: T AL :
— owners of the Company —ARREIEB A (37,037)
- non-controlling interests — IR 902
(86,135)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  BEFIFI sH B L S 4R A BT RER A —ZL5 ©
financial statements.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PO ON
%éﬂjﬁﬂﬁiﬂ% As at 30 June 2021 R=ZFE=—&FXF=+H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
PI5E FET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BE KRB 10 60,188 59,011
Right-of-use assets EREEE 11 2,692 1,226
Intangible assets mEE 12 - -
Goodwill B 13 2,932 2,932
Restricted bank deposits SR HISRITIF IR 17 570 1,244
66,382 64,413
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 322 502
Trade receivables =) e 14 70,393 53,479
Deposits, prepayments and other %~ B PERH A EWEIR
receivables 15 4,094 9,128
Loans and interest receivables JEWEF T B 16 79,534 67,680
Restricted bank deposits ZIRBIRITIF K 17 1,140 4,043
Cash and cash equivalents BE&MEEEEY 17 72,494 65,485
Current tax recoverable AT U [B] BN EATR 18 24(a) = 631
227,977 200,948
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables =Y AN 18 14,922 15,496
Accruals, deposits received and other JEETER - DU e MEM
payables FERTFIE 19 35,754 31,295
Amount due to a director JENf—REEHE 20 4,171 -
Bank loans IRITER 21 22,397 23,401
Lease liabilities HEaE 22 1,316 1,258
Bond &% 23 9,938 -
Current tax payable FETRNERTR IE 24(a) 1,137 2,999
89,635 74,449
Net current assets MEEEFE 138,342 126,499
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 204,724 190,912
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Lease liabilities HEEE 22 1,403 -
Bond &H 23 - 9,798
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEEE 24(b) 581 919
1,984 10,717
NET ASSETS EEFE 202,740 180,195

EHERERAR ik 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

N AL N As at 30 June 2021 R=ZT=—F,XA=+H
lﬁlﬂh‘ A /E\ZI- i% ;Ik /Ré% (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T5IIR)
2021 2020
—EZ-F —E-THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
FisE FET FHET
Capital and reserves ERRf#HE 27
Share capital [N 5,400 5,400
Reserves it 193,939 172,882

Total equity attributable to owners of AR FHEE ABLEREARE

the Company 199,339 178,282
Non-controlling interests IR 3,401 1,913
TOTAL EQUITY RELS AR 202,740 180,195
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 RZZT-Z—FHLAZ+ N \BEESESHELK
September 2021, RETIZE o

Yu Shaoheng Lai Tin Ming E37) by
Director Director EE )

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  B&EF i sTiE Rk I S 45 A BB Rz — 20
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2021 HEZ—ZE=—F A=t HILFE

GREERBER

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAELE
The PRC Non-
Share Share Other  Contrbuion ~ Exchange  statutory  Acoumulated controling
capitl  premium  reserve supls — reserve reserve losses Totel  interests Total
REETE SR
BE BROEE  EEEER  SARR  EXER B ZitER it s Eh
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000
Tér  TEn  TEn  TEr  TEr TER TER TER TER iR
(note (note (note (note (note
) 20 20 2700 270
(e O (W (s O
a0 2706 2706 270N 27
At1July 2019 R=B-NEtR-H 5400 198524 1,000 21,400 (505) - (105000 215319 1,011 216,330
Changes in equity for 2020: R-E-SEREES.
(Loss)/proft for the year ER(ER)/ & - - - - - - B9 (86719 0 [35817)
Exchange diferences on translation 8 8N EBEBHRR 2
offnancial statements of foreign~~~ EREE + MHREHE
operations, net of nil tax - - - - (318) - - (318 - (318
Total comprehensive (oss)income AR (51) /I
for the year &% - - - - (318) - (6719 (37,087 902 (36,139
At 30 June 2020 RZE-EEXA=1A 5400 198524 1000 21,400 (823) - {1219 178282 1913 180,19
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

S A For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZ —E=—FA=+HIFE
%FT‘ =] Eé@ﬁ ‘134% (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7 7T31)7R )
Attributable to owners of the Company
LGN

The PRC Non-

Share Share Other Confribuion ~ Exchange  statutory Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve suplus  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total

HEEE ¥R

Ra  BHEE AmEE  HARE  EXRE fE EiFB a3t Ex &t
HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
Tén TiEn TEn TR TR T Tin TiEn TEn TR

(note (note (note (note (note

anm - 20 2 27 27k

(Mt (ht i (Ht (Wt

b)) b)) 270 b)) 27b))

At 1 July 2020 W-B-R%tA-A 198,524 (47219) 178,282 180,195
Changes in equity for 2021: R-B--FEREE.
Profi for the year ERET|
Exchange diferences on translein A ESHEREHRE 2 E
of financialstatements of foreign REE TRTHE

operations, net of ni tax

Exchange diferences releasedupon - EINBAREER
deregistraton of a subsidlary, EXEE BT
net of il ax i
Total comprehensive income ERrENHEE
for the year 19,192

Appropriafiontothe PRO statutory ~— AEEREEREE
fesene (224

At 30 June 2021 W=B=-£XA=1R 5400 198524 (28,251) 199,339 3401 202,740

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — BEMIHT:FIERK L Z42 S BIFERERA—2 D
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

& A =] For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE T =—FXA=THILFE
I = | }Eﬁ)ﬂbiﬁ (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

2021 2020
—E-—F TECTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B eE FEx TET
Operating activities RETE
Profit/(loss) before taxation: BREIATE R (&R) - 20,847 (33,307)
Adjustments for: FEUTRIE
- Interest income from money lending —EEBZFBWA 3 (12,073) (16,711)
- Bank interest income —RITFIBUA 4 (124) (161)
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and —HEME  BEREREWZE
equipment, net FER 4 (230)
— Exchange differences released upon —FHE—ANB A RE MR 2
deregistration of a subsidiary P& ZERR 4 922 -
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —LENBARKE 4 (22) -
— Impairment loss on loans and interest —RBERENSRIEEE
receivables 4 9,145 37,389
— Net realised loss on financial assets at —ZAFESABRCSREE
fair value through profit or loss 2 BEREE T 4 801 -
— Revaluation (gain)/loss on property, plant ~ — ¥ - BE REES G
and equipment (W), &g 4 (3,264) 13,213
- Finance costs —BEMNAE 5(a) 1,464 1,469
— Depreciation of property, plant and —E -  BENERETE
equipment 5(c) 3,151 3,388
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FRREENE 5(c) 2,100 2,047
— Write-off of property, plant and equipment  —#72 - BiE K& SR 5 5(c) 290 -
— Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss —HNE (U2 ) B IE R AR (1,211) 329
Operating profit before changes in EEESRHH 2 LEER
working capital 22,026 7,426
Decrease in inventories FERL 180 168
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B S REWRIBCGEM),F (16,312) 3,654
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e BAFUE R EMERGIR
prepayments and other receivables WA, (380n) 5,063 (4,743)
(Increase)/decrease in loans and interest FEUE TR K F 2. (38 0), R
receivables (20,335) 19,402
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BATEAABRZEREE
through profit or loss Ve (801) -
Increase in amount due to a director JEf— R E B FIEE N 4,190 -
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B S ENFIBCRD),/ 1 (608) 1,277
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, deposits EEER - Bl e REAER
received and other payables FIEE N, CR ) 4,497 (890)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BE(FTA) FMEERSTFHE
operations (2,100) 26,294
Interest received from money lending BURRE T 2 F 8 12,073 16,711
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid, net BEREENEHFE (1,696) (6,367)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BARP BB EMEH (158) (89)
Net cash generated from operating RETBFEERSER
activities 8,119 36,549

EHERERAR ik 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

N A =] For the year ended 30 June 2021 HZE-ZT = —FXA=THILFE
=) Eﬁ,ﬁ)jm Eﬂ% (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TTHI7R)

2021 2020
—E=-F —TFF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
L= TR T
Investing activities RETH
Interest received EUHLE 124 161
Decrease in restricted bank deposits SR BISRI T O 3,577 9,582
Payment for purchase of property, plant BEYE  BEMRESZNZE
and equipment (1,333) (54,541)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ~ HEWE - BE REBEFTSHIE
and equipment 230
Net cash inflow from disposal HEWBRARRIBE RS
of subsidiaries -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZTBREL (R BEE
investing activities FE (44,568)
Financing activities REEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENAERSNEARTSD (2,105) (2,066)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENEERSNF B (80) (121)
Proceeds from new bank loans RITE SRS R - 24,270
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (1,004) (869)
Interest paid BAFIE (1,244) (1,219)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEE (A FEERS
financing activities FE (4,433) 19,995
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBESEEYEMTEE
equivalents 6,054 11,976
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REFMNEEREEEEY
of the year 65,485 53,809
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JMN [ &4 &) 1y 5/ & 955 (300)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of RERNEBEERESEEY
the year 72,494 65,485

*

The total cash consideration is HK$2.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

1

COMPANY INFORMATION

PPS International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated and domiciled
in the Cayman Islands on 31 May 2012 and its shares are listed
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 17 June 2013.

The Company has its registered office and principal place of
business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Office A, 12/F., Tower A,
Capital Tower, No. 38 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31(a).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$’000”) unless otherwise stated.
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group’s presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T31)7R )
ARER
ERERERAR(ARA D AR =T
——FRA=T—HBEFRSESEMKT
Ltz ERRERAR - HRiHEZZF
—=FRATTERERTBHMARSMA
MRAR (B2 AT ) )GEM T »

RARZFMREEREZEEEME D B
{iZ JA Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands & &8 NLEE N BE BB 51T
S8BT LAE12IEAR -

KABEREER AT - ENBARZE
DEETH R FES1(@)

HE_T_—FRA=THILFEFEH
BRJBEARFTMEMB AR (5B
[RE&EE]) -

BRBERIN  SRAMBEBREATET
(ITETD2%K - BB RARE
ZNEEBRAKEZ2HER -

FESHBER
2.1 Bf|E

HEFAEMBHRREREAT LS
fire([HESTMAS )BEMM
BEREBNHERELE(EEHH
WERER ) (BEMAEREREE
MsmERER - BEGHER(EE
SRR KRB BEYE
BERMA G RARFBARIRGIZ
BEMAEMRE ZEFEWBR
R I ST HE R FTGEMEE % 47 Al
(TGEM MR RN MR E 2 R KT
fiR3C o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

100

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2.3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current accounting period
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL”) and the interests in leasehold land and
buildings are stated at their fair values (see notes 2.6 and 2.7
respectively).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 33.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

2.1

2.2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

B (R)

BRGNS EEME T HEREX
HAEE AR A G I RATERA R
] REERTRBM B IME LR
MizE2.3tR AR Ll 3R A B IRE
A EAREERRNZEFRE MR
ROASTHREABEMN SRR
BERE B EFY o

AEEMRANEZ S5 BERB L
o

AR MBHRERE

REURABERERAT AT ER%E
BEERARRE - WIRATER AR
D([(BRAFEFABRDZEMEE
R E T RIEFRSIEEANTE
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BHRE - FEEEEFELHE - A5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:
Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions”
Amendments to HKAS 1 “Definition of Material”
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Definition of a Business”
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

“Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform”

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

2.3

2.4

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

STBXEE
EBGHI AR EEGU FRAEE
R IR R R BB I s
RIS T -

HBUBHEZER  [Covid-1918F
Flem(EEIAR)  HEERE]
BEGTERER [EEMEN
REBG TR ]
Ee (53T A)
EBTRELER [EBHNTEE]
ESCACCHIEN)

EEPHRERED  [MREE
FO - BEGRT HFEJ
HRIZE395% L&

BRI ELER
FTHRUEFTA)

ZES YA AT B AEE
B4 555 2 31 2 48 R B R SRR
SAYE - AEBLMITBRAG
ERRI U ok A R B AE (A 97 3T B 2
-

(i) NG E 220 E o

B R REASREIEF 2 B - A
SEAN2ERTRNZEMESHA
BEHREAEER - WEmEREY
ERZENFEZETOR  RAKHE
ZHZER - A ASEREHS
BN EZEEDEMN(AAKE
REMALFER) o

RSB AR ZREBIEFI#ERGZ A
BRI L2 BRI ARSI BH
"N - SEARREZER RHR
Rang  UREEARRIRERZSHM
EEZEAARBRGEN - ERESE
MEHREF 2 HEE - KEARE
RRBRAEEZ RERERUEEE
HBREEFEBRZBERT - AEEHR
S W AR 2 TS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

102

(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.10(ii).

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then its excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2.10(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment and
are initially stated at fair value for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at FVPL are
subsequently recognised in profit or loss if the investments do
not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income (recycling).

25

2.6

HBRZERAMRDR S35 2021

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

B
FEEIA TRMERZR

i FEELENQFE KK
BRI ER SRR
7R 5% [ 5 A 0 1 WK BB O B A
SR FENEM © &

() BT RIS B A R e
R AEE R B E A TIHE -

)= FN) - B ZEEENRE R 1B 25 N
R IR -

BB TR AR R AR ERRYIRR o
EGafELNEESEEEHNS
HEVBRERETSENEReELE
IR G EABMARE  WHNEFHE
TTRERIR (R EE2.100) °

RERLERSELEUR  BER
B EARESEENHER AR

Ny
S o

I

BAVEFABRECEHMEE

BRAFEFABGZZ EREENASE
EAGEBE HEZREEA®R
RILFER - WP A HEIR - ™
HERXGRAEE NS TR -

T % B W ARE B L SHA AR R A B
AtARMEE RS (R R FTE &
A AR A HERABRRZ SREE
Z A EEBEBRNBETER

103




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

104

Interest in leasehold land and buildings, where the Group is
the registered owner of the property interest, held for own
use are stated at its revaluated amount, being its fair value at
the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure
that the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2.10(ii).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held for own
use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income
and are accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the amount held
in the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately
prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to
profit or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously been charged
to profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on
the date of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the property revaluation reserve to
accumulated losses and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings 46 years
Furniture and fixtures 3to 7 years
Equipment and machinery 3to 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Leasehold improvement Over the term of lease
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2.10(ii)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The contract backlog with finite useful
lives is amortised from the date it is available for use and its
estimated useful lives is 3 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets, including money lender licenses, are not
amortised while their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite.
Any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is
indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with
the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as
set out above.

2.7

2.8
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Leased assets

106

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded
in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
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2.9 Leased assets (continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
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The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The only exceptions are
any rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set
out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.10(ii). Depreciation is calculated
to write off the cost of right-of-use assets using the straight line
method over the lease term or where it was likely the Group
would obtain ownership of the assets, the life of the assets, as
set out in note 2.7.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets
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@

Credit losses from financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including trade and other receivables,
loans and interest receivables, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents). Financial assets
measured at FVPL are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive), discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition of the receivables where
the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk. In measuring ECLs, the
Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs which
result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of these financial assets. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost,
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial asset since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The 12-month ECLs are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial asset assessed at the end of the reporting period
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held). The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial asset’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial assets are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
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2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
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0]

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting period
to reflect changes in the financial asset’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial assets with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2.21
is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:
— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.
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2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

0]

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
—  right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
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2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
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(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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2.11 Inventories 211 &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

Inventories, which represent consumable goods, are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

2.12 Loans and interest receivables

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans receivable
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets, or if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted to
borrowers in the ordinary course of business.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see
note 2.10(i)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.13 Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note
2.10()).

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, restricted deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.10(j).

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

2.16 Interest-bearing borrowings

114

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs (see note 2.23).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Employee benefits

0]

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
in Hong Kong and defined contribution government
pension schemes in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the retirement
benefit scheme organised by the government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute, based on a certain
percentage of payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions
to this retirement benefit scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories at the end
of the reporting period.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

116

(ii)

(iii)

Long service payments payable on cessation of
employment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the long service
payment payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method, discounted to its present
value and reduced by entitlements accrued under
the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent
that the benefits have already been vested.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible participants as
consideration for share options of the Company.

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Trinomial
Option Pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.

The equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to accumulated
losses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Income tax 218 Fr8%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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e VI ERAR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Income tax (continued)

118

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of

dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Financial guarantees issued

120

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially stated at fair value
(being the transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise
be reliably estimated) as deferred income. Thereafter, the
amount of the guarantee is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract and recognises a provision when
ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the amount carried in deferred income in respect
of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL
is measured. The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk as described in
note 2.10(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

2.21

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the provision of services and money lending in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a service is
transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

(i) Provision of environmental and cleaning services

Service income received or receivable from customers
when the environment and cleaning service contracts,
which relates to routine environmental and cleaning
services, are entered into, is recognised over time in
proportion to the stage of completion of the service
contract as the work is performed.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2.10(i)).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
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e VI ERAR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii) Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by the way of reduced depreciation expense.

2.22 Translation of foreign currencies

122

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁjﬁﬁ% M{I--ELI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T31)7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

222 HNERIREE (1)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.
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2.23 Borrowing costs 2.23 AR A
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, AUHE - BESEEEE(FRN—R
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes RS 7 R E R AR E 2 Bk iED
a substantive period of time to get ready for its intended use ERBEE)MEEZIERKAE
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other BRMCBZEERAE L —85D - A
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are E A SR AR 8 A BRI DIER o
incurred.

2.24 Related parties 2.24 BAEET

() A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(8) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Related parties (continued)

124

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (j).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁjﬁ*ﬁ% M{I-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T7117R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Segment reporting 225 DEPwE

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

Revenue represents the services rendered to customers from
the provision of environmental and cleaning services and
interest income earned from the money lending business, as
follows:
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(a)
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2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Revenue within the scope of ERMBEHREEAEISHREER
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from ZWHBEEEHWE
Contracts with Customers”
Service income from environmental IR NMOFIR 7 IRISUA
and cleaning 342,702 328,675
Revenue from other sources H b A R
Interest income from money lending BB 2 A BWA 12,073 16,711
354,775 345,386

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its revenue contracts such that the above
information does not include information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under those revenue contracts that
had an original expected duration of one year or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR M

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHEoHHE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting

126

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, which
are used to make strategic decisions including resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

The segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different business
strategies. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

Environmental and Provision of environmental and
cleaning cleaning services in Hong Kong
and the PRC
Money lending Provision of money lending
business in Hong Kong and
the PRC
Investments Investments in financial assets
The chief operating decision maker assesses the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure of reportable
segment results. This measurement basis excludes central
administrative and other costs including directors’ emoluments,
other operating expenses and finance costs.

Segment assets mainly exclude corporate assets, property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and cash and cash
equivalents that are managed on a central basis. Goodwill and
intangible assets are allocated to reportable segments.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA ENTS
ﬁé/ﬁxﬂ- i% *ﬁ% w-ﬁi (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA7&7TF117R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaEkoH®E(E)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2EHE (&)

Segment liabilities mainly exclude corporate liabilities, bank SHEBEFETBREATBE - #R17
loans and bond. ERRES -
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () DEBEE ZEREE
2021
8-
Environmental Money
and cleaning  Investments lending  Unallocated Total
BEREZ RE HE AR st

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn T TiEn

Reportable segment revenue from EREEGERNRENERY

external customers recognised by BECpED

over time PAVE] 354,775
Reportable segment profit/{loss) HEEA/ (BE) (808) (2,124) 21,514
Unallocated corporate expense FAOBCERR
Other income, other gains and other losses ~ EMUIA Bl REMEEN R

and impaiments i 2410
Central administrative costs RARATHEA (7,699)
Finance costs AR (1,384)
Profit before taxation BBiAER 20,847
Other segment information A HER
Impaiment loss on loans and interest EREFRASHESR

receivables
Net realised loss on financial essefs at FVPL - A TESF A BR748EE,

ERFREE

Revaluation gain on property, plant % BEREERNE

and equipment (3,264)
Depreciation of iER
— property, plant and equipment -z BEREE 1,807
- right-of-use assets -RREEE :
Interest on lease liahities HEARHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR M

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHEoHHE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

(b) &P E (4])

128

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (i) DEBFEE BEREE(E)
2020
_TCEE
Environmental Money
andcleaning  Investments lending  Unallocated Total
REREEZ e i Ly B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Th T TEL Thr Th
Reportable segment revenue from REEEEEINRENIERY
external customers recognised by THEAPUE
over time 328,675 - 16,711 - 345,386
Reportable segment profit/(loss) AREHTER /(BB 13,918 20) (28,258) - (14,365)
Unallocated corporate expense RABLERY
Other income, other gains and other losses — EMMA - EREREHERIR
and impalrments e (18,192
Central administrative costs BRITHE AR (4,402)
Finance costs BERK (1,348)
Loss hefore taxation K AER (33,307)
Other segment information EthAHER
Impairment loss on loans and BYERRNEHESE
interest receivables - - 37,389 - 37,389
Revaluation loss on property, plant and W% BERIEEERFE
equipment - - - 13213 13213
Depreciation of: =R
-~ praperty, plant and equipment -0% HBEREE 1575 - - 1813 3388
- right-of-use assets -FRELE 1415 - 590 1Y) 2,047
Interest on lease liabities fREaEHS 9 - % 1 121
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA ENTS
ﬁé/ﬁgf i% *ﬁ% w-ﬁi (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA7&7TF117R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaEkoH®E(E)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2EHE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (i) DEBEE BEREEE)
2021 2020
ZRI-F ka3
Environmental Money Environmental Money
and cleaning  Investments lending Total  and cleaning Investments lending Total
RERER ke H &t BEREZ Y Hif &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
TERL TiEn TER TERL TER TR T TEL

Assets BE
Segment assets NEE 126,385 1014 79220 206,619
Unallocated corporate AOEGEEE

assets 58,742

265,361

Liabilities &
Seqment iabiles SH8E (5260) (5,502) (58,122 (#8.090) 19 0285 150399
Unallocated corporate ROECEEE

febiltes (33497) 34773

(91,619) (85,166)

Other segment information  E 5 &4
Addtions to segment FENHIERD

non-current asses EE 1,182 - - 1182
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁj i% ﬁ% M:.I--E\I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHEoHHE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEEwE(E)
(i) Geographical information and major customers (i) HEEHRFEEF

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets
and goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the assets, in case
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
and the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in case of intangible assets and goodwill.

Revenue from
external customers

RENBEF 2K
2021 2020
=F=—F —TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Hong Kong 55 316,682 316,731
The PRC H 38,093 28,655

354,775 345,386

Revenue from major customer arising from provision of
environmental and cleaning services which accounted for
10% or more of the total revenue is set out below:

RSB R A EERE SN
BEP 2 Wam RN R 2
BER&E - ERAEEE - &
WEERBE([EEFRDE
E) iRz B - f5EF
MBEEMTEHRREEER
PR (A - BB MRt
REREEEMNS)  AREE
eI (BRI B B S A B

BBk [

Specified non-current

assets

EBEXRBERE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —EFTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
59,958
3,211
63,169

RERBENBERBAFRE
TERPHYE(EBYKE10%
A E)EFIET

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Customer A =EA N/A i@ A 59,285

i The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more
of the total revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND OTHER 4 HfiltA - Httlham R HEMEE

4

LOSSES AND IMPAIRMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

Other income

Bank interest income
Government grants
Sundry income

Other gains

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, net

Revaluation gain on property, plant and
equipment

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Other losses and impairments

Impairment loss on loans and interest
receivables

Exchange differences released upon
deregistration of a subsidiary

Net realised loss on financial assets at FVPL

Revaluation loss on property, plant and
equipment

LR RE
2021 2020
—E—F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Heg A
ERITHBHA 161
BB 4,809
HEIFUA 59
5,029
Hiua
HEYE - BEMEBRSFE
230
Y - BB MR EBEGHRE
HEH B AR WS -
230
HiEsiE RmE
FENE R R BOR B 18
(9,145) (37,389
T —FENBARERER 2
b 5 5 (922) -
BAFEFABEZEMEEZ
BB EEFEE (801) -
M - BENMEEEGHSE
(13,213)
(10,868) (50,602)
17,189 (45,343)

During the year, the Group successfully applied for funding support & A + A& B KT B B8 55 5117 & BUT &
of HK$24,528,000 (2020: HK$4,809,000) from the Employment Y WM EZSRBLEFTEPERFE D LF
Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the 24,528,000/ jT ( =& = F 4 : 4,809,0008
Government from Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The 7T) ° ZZ & WARE R EREN B X
purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to enterprises ~ #f * NI B AIge @ W EEE © IRIBHIG
to retain their employees who would otherwise be made redundant. X * AEBR @A AR TN SHEY B BEE S
Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make FARIZNRANEEANHNEELE °
redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the funding

on paying wages to the approved list of the employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

5 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@) Finance costs:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)
5 RBIADER(BER)
BRERLE S (B8 B0k (FFA) T

Effective interest on bond (note 23)
Interest on bank loans
Interest on lease liabilities

KIF :

(a) BB :
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
BHZEBRF B (MizE23) 829
RITERZFE 519
HEBGBEZHE 121
1,469

(b)
(note 7)):

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments

(b) ETRA(BIEESHM (T

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

Provision for long service payments

Other items:

(c)

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories sold

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Expense relating to short-term leases

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Write-off of property, plant and equipment

7)) :

2021 2020
—EZ—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
e TEREMER 192,937 176,356

TE R FGRIRGT B R 50
6,324 5,877
RERG G 643 548
199,904 182,781

(c) Hfgg :
2021 2020
—E—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
2 B8R 7 B 725 725
BEFERA 7,705 6,737
Y% - BENERETE

3,151 3,388
FREEENE 2,100 2,047
REAHERER S 2,014 1,528
HNE (Uezs) /B RIEEE (1,125) 344

290
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6

6

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

REBRERPHNAES

(a) FEBIERFHBIERE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ ENHi%i1E — H#&R1EH
Provision for the year FREE 1,746
Over-provision in respect of prior years BRBAFERNBERE (5)
1,741
Current tax — PRC Enterprise BNEARITE — R EFTEH
Income Tax
Provision for the year FREE 753
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEBRTFERNBERE (51)
702
Deferred tax (credit)/expense FEERIE(ER)BX
(note 24(b)) (FffzE24(b))
Origination and reversal of temporary RS ZRE AR IR & B ]
differences 67
Income tax expense SR> 2,510

Hong Kong Profits Tax

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended
30 June 2021 is calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying corporation under

the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).

BEREH
HE-_Z-_—FXA=ZtHLFESR
ENESRBEEFANGTERTG
FEN16.5%( — B -F4F : 16.5%) 5t
o WASE-RNBARRRIN  Z
MEBATAFMSHMABERGIEET
HEEBEIREE -

Z [ B A B 89 & 2,000,000 78 It &
R RF5825% (— T T ¢
8.25% ) MR EKEIR - MBp THE
B HENIE165% (Z BT F :
16.5% ) BTt R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI ERAR M

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

134

loss represents: (continued)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are subject to the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax of 25% (2020: 25%) for the year.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) derived since 1 January
2008 is subject to withholding income tax at rates of 5% or
10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors
or companies incorporated in Hong Kong or for other foreign
investors, respectively.

At 30 June 2021 and 2020, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in respect of tax that would be payable on
the unremitted profits of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1
January 2008 as the directors of the Company is in a position
to control the dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries and no
distribution of such profits is expected to be declared from the
PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

Income tax from other tax jurisdictions

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in respective tax jurisdictions.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

REBEBERPHAEHR(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

RERmRTAAES (&)

(b) EERARRTENEHEE
BEHER (BB WEER

Profit/(loss) before taxation

BREATEF,(E1R)

Notional tax expense/(credit) on profit
or loss before taxation at Hong Kong
statutory tax rate

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

Over-provision in respect of prior years

Tax concession

BRI A M R R R R IR
F% (%)  REBEE

BEEE
PRHBRA R BRIG &
TR RS E
AHERREAHIAEEDN

MR E

BRI T AR BB H

A2
MEBAR AR TN E
BRBEFENBRER
MEE

Income tax expense

PSR

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FET

(33,307)

3,439 (5,495)

(4,614) (1,565)

2,179 8,449

154 1,186

(1) (33)

645 235

(738) (56)

(897) @11)

167 2,510
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T AR R

7

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

Salaries, allowance and
Fees benefits in kind
He §¢ RRRENEN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

7 EEME
RIBEBBRAEDIZEI83()E - RRI(KE
E=ZNGEEM) ROIE28RGEM LT
A EEMESRENT -

Contributions to
Discretionary defined contribution
bonuses retirement plan Total
MR ERHTEAKIHBL EH

2021 2020 2021 2020
BC-f “3%F Cg--f C3-%F
Nofes  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS00
e TEn TEn  TER TR

Present directors RiEEs
Executive directors #nEE
M. Yu Shaoheng FMETRE 1650 612
M. Lai Tin Ming PROEE 120 1,006
Independent non-executive  BUFLTES
directors
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack ~ EFF85%4 120 -
Mr. Meng Enhai ZBERE 120 -
Mr. Wang Cui HiE 1 14 -
Former director HEES
Independent non-executive  BIEHTES
director
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong et 2 106 -
2,130 1,618

During the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, no director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments. No emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Notes:

1. Mr. Wang Cui was appointed on 18 May 2020.

2. Mr. Wong Hiu Fong resigned on 18 May 2020.
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2021 2020 202 2020 2021 2020
Zg--f -F-FF CE--F -3-FF B -E-F%
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKSO000

Téx  TET TR TEr TEr 0 TEn

106

3,880

REE-ZE-—FR-_T-TF A=+
HILFE  WEEEHREXBERETM
Bl o NEBBMERANRRER L EM
i€ - YEAIMAKRIMAREE RN IEE
RVEABERAHE -

GEE

1, FTREGER-_ZB_SFRA+N\BEZ
£

2. IBMEER-_Z-_ZFRAT/\BE
£




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

8

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2020:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2020:
three) individuals are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T7117R)
BE#HAL
hEEaHFATH  ME(ZTE_FF :
MB)REE - HEMRMTET7IRE - B
Hh=F(ZT=ZTF : =) AL
gaFamn T

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAMBET
Discretionary bonuses EISTEAT
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FGRIRGT BRI AR

retirement plan

2021 2020
B —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
1,398

142

56

1,596

The emoluments of the other three (2020: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

EMEB=R(—E-25  —R)BRESH
AL BB T -

2021 2020
—E--F —ET-FF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AE N

HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 T T £ 1,000,000 7T

N

During the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the individuals with highest
emoluments of the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 9
(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$19,192,000 (2020: loss of
HK$36,719,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 540,000,000 ordinary shares (2020: 540,000,000
ordinary shares) in issue during the years.

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 30
June 2021 and 2020 is the same as the basic earnings/(loss)
per share as the Company does not have any potential dilutive
ordinary shares during the years ended 30 June 2021 and
2020.

REE-ZE-—FR-_FT-TF /=
AIEFE @ AEEMERASETH RS
AT - (EAIMASRINARE
BRSNS IERBERME -

SRER (&)
(a) BRELXER(EE)

SEDIREBBEFTERARES AR
1HE R F19,192,0008 T (—ZF =
T4 1 [554836,719,000/8 L) BB 3%
77 38 A% hn#eE -39 £540,000,000 3%
A% (—Z =F4F : 540,000,0008%
LBPBOIED o

(b) ERBERAN(BE)

HERARARREE - —FNK_F
—EFEXRNAZTHIFEYETME
EEELTER  WHE_ZT-—FkK
—E_TFEXNA=ZTHIEEENER
EERT (R BEREREF,
(&) 18R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁj i% ﬁ% Bﬁ-ﬁi (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 1% MERZE
Equipment
Land and Furniture and Motor ~ Computer  Leasehold
buildings  and fixtures  machinery vehicles  equipment improvement Total
IHRER HBRAREE RERES RE %A HELE st

HK§000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$O000  HKS'000  HK§000  HK$'000
TR ThL ThL ThL AL AL AL

Cost or valuation BASMEE
At 1 July 2019 RZE-N%F
tA-H - 1,702 12,624 13931 74 1,462 29,793
Additions NE 67,046 596 1178 - 204 1,807 70,851
Revaluation loss BEEE (13,213) - - - - - (13,213
Less: elimination of accumulated 5, : ZsHTE L
depreciation (1,433) - - - - - (1,433)
Written off Hhsa - - - - - (1,179) (1,179)
Disposals & - - - (1,968) - - (1,968)
Exchange realignment B 5 R - ) (22) - 8 - (27)
At 30 June 2020 RZE-%%F
~A=TAH 52,400 2,296 13780 11963 295 2,096 82,830
Representing &
Cost KA - 2,296 13780 11963 295 2,096 30,430
Valuation (L3 52,400 - - - - - 52,400
52,400 2,296 13780 11963 295 2,096 82,830
At 1 July 2020 RZE-%%
tA-H 52,400 2,296 13780 11963 295 2,096 82,830
Additions AE - 22 1135 163 13 - 1,333
Revaluation gain Bt 3,264 - - - - - 3,264
Less: elimination of accumulated | : ZHTE L
depreciation (1,164) - - - - - (1,164)
Written off ki - (1415) (2,969) - - - (4,384)
Exchange realignment B 5 R - 5 60 (1) 8 - 72
At 30 June 2021 R-E-—F
~A=TAH 54,500 908 12,006 12,125 316 2,096 81,951
Representing &
Cost KA - 908 12,006 12,125 316 2,096 27 451
Valuation fH(E 54,500 - - - - - 54,500
54,500 908 12,006 12,125 316 2,096 81,951
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e ISR MEE

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Equipment

Land and Furniture and
buildings and fixtures ~ machinery
IHREF GAREE RERES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

10 ¥% - BERZE(E)

Motor ~ Computer  Leasehold

vehicles  equipment improvement Total
RE MR BEXE @t

HK$000  HKS000  HK$O000  HK$000
TR TR ThL AL

Accumulated depreciation  R3HTE

At 1 July 2019 RZE-NE

tA-8 - 1,041 9,328 13,138 50 1,462 25,019
Charge for the year EEXH 1433 334 1,052 305 55 209 3,388
Elimination on revaluation B8 (1,4393) - - - - - (14393)
Writen off Hsa - - - - - (1,179) (1,179)
Eliminated on disposals HELHE - - - (1,968) - - (1,968)
Exchange realignment EHHE - (1) (1) - 2 - (14)
At 30 June 2020 and i

1 July 2020 ~AAZTRER

e e 2

+A-8 - 1,374 10,369 11,475 103 498 23819
Charge for the year FEXH 1,164 257 1,095 188 86 361 3,151
Elimination on revaluation il (1,164) - - - - - (1,164)
Written off Hisa - (1,125) 2,969) - - - (4,094)
Exchange realignment EHHE - 4 41 - 6 - 51
At 30 June 2021 W-Z-—f

~A=tH - 510 8,536 11,663 195 859 21763
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2021 i

~AZtA 54500 398 3,470 462 121 1,237 60,188
At 30 June 2020 R-2-%

~AZtA 52,400 922 3411 488 192 1,598 59,011

The land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong and are held
under a medium-term lease.

The fair value of the Group’s land and buildings is measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into Level 2 fair value measurement within the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.

Level 2 fair value measurement is those derived from inputs
other than unadjusted quoted prices within Level 1, or significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available.

T REFURES  WREFHEER
5o

AEET W RET 2 A FERREHRZ
REMEREAE  YDBEEFEVBHRS
EF1BF A HEABIAREZ=ZRA
FEEBRANZE_RATEAE -

RN FEAERHABER(FE -HR
ZARBRAERERIN) XE=ZMAZEKR
THEBERBABEMEL - THEEHA
BRI EMSBIBIELE 2B AR -
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e VI ERAR M

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

11

(CONTINUED)

During the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2021, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or our of
Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

The fair values of the Group’s land and buildings at 30 June 2021
and 2020 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation by Royson
Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, and are determined using the
market approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis using market data which
is publicly available. Had they been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, the carrying amount would have been HK$64,180,000
(2020: HK$65,613,000).

At 30 June 2021, the Group had pledged its land and buildings
with carrying amount of HK$54,500,000 (2020: HK$52,400,000)
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 21) and
performance bonds issued (note 32(a)).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

10 ¥% - BERZE(E)

ﬁf:fg: E&—?—?ﬂz/\ﬂ +E‘
HEFE - F—REE R BLEEHR
TMEBE —MBARE L - NEBEZBER
TIRREMREREMBLENRFEER
fElz i -

AREBLHNEBFNR T -_—FL T
EFNAZTHZAFEEREEARE
EWEREE A LR EEGERME
R EBRERAAMEZGETE
WL ERAFAIESTHEHRIENEUE
ﬁﬁﬂ)ﬂf & AR T E B %
HEBRERBAMEBAETE - MxEtL
M F IR K AR 2T ESIER - BIER
E{Eﬂﬂ%641soooo,%m(_7_7¢
65,613,000/ 7T) ©

RZZE——FA=+A8" leila%fi#ﬁ
ﬁﬁéﬁfﬁﬁm 500,000/ (ZE =% F :
52,400,000/ 70 ) K T RABF - LAER
BYPAEERBEITRVE (FiaE21) R H
BB IR 75 (M EE32(@a)) °

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 11 EAREE
HK$'000
F#T
Cost ﬁEZF
At 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020 and R-ZZE—hEFE+A—HB —ZE-ZTF
1 July 2020 /\H TEEZZF=ZFt+H—AH 3,273
Additions B 3,565
Written off g (3,279)
At 30 June 2021 R-ZE-—%F,A=+H 3,565
Accumulated depreciation HEinE
At 1 July 2019 R-ZE—NFE+A—8 -
Charge for the year FEXH 2,047
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 RZBE-_EFNA=Z+BAR_ZE-_ZEFtA—H 2,047
Charge for the year Eri i 2,100
Written off HsH (3,279)
Exchange adjustments & H % 1)
At 30 June 2021 RZZE-—FXA=+H 873
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 June 2021 RZZE-—FXA=+H 2,692
At 30 June 2020 RZEZZTFA=1H 1,226
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e ISR MEE

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group has obtained right to use certain properties as its office
premises and warehouse through tenancy agreements. The leases
run for a period of 2 to 4 years, at the end of which period all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable lease

payments.

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash
flows comprise cash outflow for leases of HK$2,014,000 and
HK$2,105,000 (2020: HK$1,528,000 and HK$2,066,000) in

operating and financing activities respectively.

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 70511 7R

11 EHAEEEH)

AEEREBZBEHE R
EREEMREMERE Eﬁﬁﬁéﬂ

3

BEETY

e raray
25

HERH2EAF - IAGFRNEBLR

ERTRER -

e
NI

SABAR
BATHEER

o % EME

imuiﬁm

T % 2,1050008 L ( —E - T F
1,528,000/ 7T }2.2,066,00078 7T ) °

12 BLEE

S NBRREAEEEN

REAEEER
%t 2 B A2,014,000

Money
Contract lender
backlog license Total
REREH BEAER BEr
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
Cost R
At 1 July 2019 RZZE—-NFEHA—H 333 969 1,302
Written off G (333) (969) (1,302)
At 30 June 2020, 1 July 2020 RZZEZZFA=1+H "
and 30 June 2021 —E-FFHA-BR
—E-—FA=TH - - -
Accumulated amortisation ZET B RRE
and impairment
At 1 July 2019 —hFtA—H 333 969 1,302
Written off 6| (333) (969) (1,302)
At 30 June 2020, 1 July 2020 RZZEZZEFA=1+H"
and 30 June 2021 = S =l = )4
—E-—FXA=TH - - -
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 June 2021 and 2020 RIB-—FR-Z_TF
~A=+H - - -
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ﬁéﬁj i% ﬁ% Bﬁ-ﬁi (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

13 GOODWILL 13 BE
HK$'000
FAET
Cost and carrying amount RAREREE
At 30 June 2021 and 2020 R-E_—FR-_ZT_FFHA=1H 2,932
Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill BEHENESEEEURERNR
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to PR THRE T Y& &R R ML H 3o i
country of operation and operating segment as follows: EXREECHREEESN
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT

Environmental and cleaning — the PRC IRRRBER—F ‘!! 2,932

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently AEESTFETEHERENR BT
if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. Bt BRENDTR - Qg B RZET
A, o

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on the & EEEM ARG S5 HRBERAES
value-in-use calculation under the income approach, which includes MEREEFESIANEE  EFBER
the discounted cash flows sourced from the financial budgets BEREMEZRERFHE MBS
approved by the management covering a five-year period, and the FriS®BiIRE IR & - MMEAIREL
post-tax discount rate of approximately 14.3% (2020: 13.6%) that 143%(ZFE=FF : 13.6%) RMIERT
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and SHeBEREERERSELEEMITER
the risks specific to the CGU. B2 5 o

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the RIEESERESRTENDEREEER
expected revenue from existing and potential customers throughout B 2 TEERR A B E R P mIED -
the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period BEAFHE RS RS RARE20%
have been extrapolated using a steady 2.0% (2020: 2.0%) per (Z2ZZF 1 20%)MFIEREIER - &
annum growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long term EREWARBHTIS 2 RATIIERE o

average growth rate for the market.
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mEMBHRRME
13 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

14

(continued)

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the

CGU are as follows:

Budgeted market share

Number of service
contracts

The values assigned to the assumption
reflect past experience, except for the
growth factor, which is consistent with
the directors’ estimation of the revenue
from existing and potential customers.
The directors believe that planned revenue
growth per year for the next five years is
reasonably achievable.

In order to maintain successive business
operations of the CGU, the directors
believe that there is no particular difficulty
in renewal of the service contracts of the
existing customers in the CGU.

The directors of the Company believe that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed

its recoverable amount.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

13 BHE(HE)

BERENREEAEWRENR
(%)

TERCEASBNZEREBRRATAZE
BT ¢
BEMSMHE BREMIETCZEERRB
Fags  BRISRAERIN
HEEEHREHREG B
EREFWESZHEr—5 -
EEZHEARAFEEN
Bl ESIE R AE BT
BIRKFE o

RIFENBE RERFRSEL BN
BERG2E BFEME
ERRSELBUBRAR
F 89 BR %5 & %936 5 Bl R
o

ARBEERR  sHEAIUE S EPTIKE
MEIBRRZEMAEAIEZH T EE
KRR CEEBMU REEBRBE KBS
B o

14 BEZEWFIE

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance of

HKS$NIl (2020: HKSNil)

B2 RFR - HIkREREE

THET(ZTE_TF  TBT)

2021 2020

—B--F —EoTE
HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHET

53,479
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ERRMEE
14 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
(a) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables, based on the invoice date (or date of
revenue recognition, if earlier) and net of loss allowance for
credit losses, is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

14 E5EWRIE(E)
(a) ERERD T

RB|BERR - REF A Y (S rE
REH UREERE)2IINES
UG IR (FIRRE BB IR B R AR
BRI -

2021 2020
—E—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET

0-30 days 0&30H

31-60 days 31260H
61-90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days @m0 H

40,607
10,174
1,648
1,050

53,479

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note
28(a).

15 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

BRAKBEEEBR ZE—TFHEH
FAKiEE28(a) °

15 &  ANFEREMEYRE

Deposits (note (a) e (Mik@)
Prepayments TEfR IR
Other receivables E b U IR

2021 2020
—EC-—-F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FA&T
2,077

468

6,583

9,128

All of the Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables,
apart from certain deposits of HK$1,531,000 (2020: HK$1,721,000),
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

15 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(a) Deposits

The Group has tendered for certain environmental services
contracts and deposited sums of HK$925,000 (2020:
HK$974,000) as tender deposits at 30 June 2021. The tender
deposits are interest-free and repayable at the end of the
tender.

16 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

15 ?{2‘:%) - TR ROIR K H s B WK TR
&

(@) #&&

RZZE-—FXA=Z+H KA&EEB
BIZETRERES Y » W%
&4 EE925,0008 L ( ZE T F ¢
974,000;‘%7‘5)?52%&%%&@ "iE
BREATTE  ANBIEARKE
;‘Eo

16 BEREREFE

2021 2020
—E--F “Z2°%
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXRHD FEDS Y EREH MEHH Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TAT FHL TAT
Secured loans by mortgage  SAIRIE(EILE 2

BHRER 11,500 11,604 8,402 59 8,461
Personal guaranteed loans A ZRE 87,028 89,518 88,682 2,526 91,208
Unsecured loans EERAE 24,890 24,946 5,400 - 5,400
123,418 126,068 102,484 2,585 105,069
Less: Loss alowance o BERE (44,689) (46,534) (36,035) (1,354) (37,389)
78,729 79,534 66,449 1,231 67,680
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e SRR MR

16 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 6% to
24% (2020: 8% to 24%) per annum and repayable on maturity date
under the terms in contractual agreements or on demand in writing
by the Group. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding loans and interest receivables to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management.

(a) Ageing analysis

Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due dates:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

16 BWERKFE(F&)

JERERIRFEN RN F6%E24%(—F =
TH 1 8%E24%)TE - WHAKENA
WA GFFIR TR A RIRERMERE
B o AEBEKEEREERKRER LN
BHERERES - URERIEERR -
BEMERETIRETHES -

(a) BRER DT
REDITIRIEA ORI B RS

2021 2020
—E--F 3
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXRHD FEHD @5t s HEHH @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FER TEx FHL TAT FEL
Current (not past due) BN (Kim) 57,893 642 58,535
Less than 1 month past due  BE DR —1{EA - % %
1 to 3 months past due BE-—==@A - - -
Over 3 months past due BEA=A 8,556 493 9,049
66,449 1,231 67,680
The credit quality of loans and interest receivables has ERERRFENEEE=Z2ZHH

been assessed by reference to historical information about
counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 28(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬂjﬁﬁ% M{I-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA7&7TF117R)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 17 B RIRLZEEY - SREIET

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW FREREMRESRELER
INFORMATION
(@) Cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits @ JRENREEBYEIBRHIRITER
comprise cash at banks and on hand: BIERITRFERS ¢
2021 2020
—E-—fF —Z=TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Deposits with banks RITFER 1,710 5,287
Cash at bank and on hand IRTT R FEEIRE 72,494 65,485
74,204 70,772
Restricted bank deposits (note) ZRHIRITIE R (M) (1,710) (5,287)
Cash and cash equivalents in the AR Z RS R
consolidated statement of financial REFEY
position 65,485
Note: The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks Misk « B HIRITERIERRITIH B AR
as security for due performance under several environmental & EREZRBITAETRERESE
service contracts. The restricted bank deposits of HK$570,000 KWER - PRRWMERRE—F
(2020: HK$1,244,000) that relate to environmental service EENEHIRIBIRE & 40 2 TR HIER
contacts with expiry date over one year after the end of the 1T 570,0008 T (ZEFF -
reporting period are presented as non-current assets. 1,244,000 7T) W25 AIERENE

Eo
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e SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 17 BRERBELZEY - ZRFIBRT

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

FREEMRSREER (F)

b) TERFAREERELTHAELNE
BEY  BREASNIFRSEH - @
BRPMELNABRERSREN
ARBREREFRAEBRSRER
ERADBABERFMELRESR
EMAIE-

Bank Lease
loans liabilities Bond Total
RITEX HESE &% st
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FAET FAET FAT
(note 21) (note 22) (note 23)
(Kt&E21) (HzE22) (BtE23)
At 1 July 2019 R=ZB—-NFtHE—H - 3,324 9,669 12,993
Changes from financing BEBRESHRESE !
cash flows:
Capital element of lease ENHEERSHNER
rentals paid ¥ - (2,066) - (2,066)
Interest element of lease BEHEERSNFE
rentals paid 7B - (121) - (121)
Interest paid EATHLE (519 - (700) (1,219)
Proceeds from new bank FTIIRITER S
loans B 24,270 - - 24,270
Repayment of bank loans BEBIRTER (869) - - (869)
22,882 (2,187) (700) 19,995
Other changes: Hith &g :
Effective interest on bond BHZEERHE
(note 23) (Mf7E23) - - 829 829
Interest expenses (note 5(a))  #E B (Mi3E5()) 519 121 - 640
519 121 829 1,469
At 30 June 2020 R=ZZ-2F
~AE=TH 23,401 1,258 9,798 34,457
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ﬁéﬁjﬁﬁ% M{I--ELI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T31)7R )

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 17 B RIRLZEEY - SREIET

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW ERREMBESHREER (E)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(b)  (continued) o) (&)
Bank Lease
loans liabilities Bond Total
MITEXK HEaE &% st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T FHT FHT FAT

(note 21) (note 22) (note 23)

(FF7321) (M3E22) (Kt5x23)

1 July 2020 —E-EF+HA—H 23,401 1,258 9,798 34,457

Changes from financing RERESHREEH :

cash flows:
Capital element of lease ENHEHESNER
rentals paid i - (2,105) - (2,105)
Interest element of lease ENHEEHRSNFE
rentals paid b2 - (80) - (80)
Interest paid BERFE (544) - (700) (1,244)
Repayment of bank loans BEIBITEN (1,004) - - (1,004)
(1,548) (2,185) (700) (4,433)
Exchange adjustments A - 1 - 1
Other changes: HihE s :
Effective interest on bond BEH 2 BERENE
(note 23) (KftEx23) - - 840 840
Interest expenses (note 5(a))  H.B B (H:E5()) 544 80 - 624
New lease entered MEIHE - 3,565 - 3,565
544 3,645 840 5,029
At 30 June 2021 R-B=-—%
~NAZ=1+H 22,397 2,719 9,938 35,054
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e SRR MR

18 TRADE PAYABLES

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

18 ERENARE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FA&T

Trade payables

B P ENFIR

-I!H 15,496

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

BERSHR  REZAHZINEHE
NFIERE DT

0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

0%30H

31%60H
61Z290H
#B3E90H

2021 2020
—EZ-F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
15,126

346

24

15,496

19 ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER

PAYABLES

19 B8R  BhEZesREMEM

FIE

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT

Accrued salaries

Provision for long service payments
Provision for untaken leave
Provision for claims

Other accruals

Deposits received

Other payables

JERTH#r &
RERG A
AEM ARG
RIERE

HitfERt &
[RE¢i7n
HAtb e IR

12,842
4,067
3,158
4,441
5,495

491
801

31,295
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e B HRRMHE
20 AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amount due to Mr. Yu Shaoheng is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

21 BANK LOANS

The bank loans are repayable on demand and the maturity of bank
loans, based on the schedule payment dates set out in the loan
agreements, is as follows:

20

21

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

Eft—2EEREA
FERARBTREZ BRBER 28K

BB -

RITER

RITEFAREREE - REBEERIGHEF
TR B RITERZHHB M
T

2021 2020
—E-—fF =T
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET

Within 1 year —FR

After 1 year but within 2 years —FRBRFA
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRBREFA
More than 5 years RFELA L

1,004
1,028
3,234
18,135

23,401

Details on the interest rate profile of the Group are set out in note
28(c).

The bank loans were secured by the Group’s land and buildings
with a carrying amount of HK$54,500,000 (2020: HK$52,400,000)
and corporate guarantees from the Company and a subsidiary.

AR 2 FIRBERF BN FE28(0)

SRITE R TILAZ & E AR EE 454,500,000
BIt(ZZT -Z4F : 52,400,000 7T) 2 +
o MIEF AR AR T R — AN B AR FTE
ZARERIEERA -
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%é/ﬁjf i% *ﬁ% WEI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

22 LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HHEAE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRINTAEEREEERRERDEH
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period: TEHEIER -
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
HE HE HE HE

RERE  FEAE  FERE FURRH
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FTEx TAT TAET

Within 1 year —FR 1,258 1,286
After 1 year but within 2 years —F&ERFER - -
After 2 years but within 5 years MEEERFRA - -
1,258 1,286
Less: total future interest W BRI BRS 8
expenses (28)
Present value of lease liabilities T E&ERE 1,258
23 BOND 23 &%
On 20 November 2014, the Company issued an unlisted corporate RZZE—NE+—HZ+H  AAFET
bond at a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 which is unsecured, N4 %E7410,000,000/8 TTHFE LA RIE
bears a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum and is fully redeemable % ZEFRERER  REEFNET%
by the Company after 7 years from the issue date at its principal B mMERTEREEFEATRARR
amount of HK$10,000,000. 1ZH K $%810,000,00078 TR EEE -
The movement of the unlisted corporate bond is set out as below: LM ARESFEHFHINLT -
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At beginning of the year NG 9,669
Effective interest expense EREF SR 829
Interest paid BERFE (700)
At end of the year RER 9,798
The effective interest rate of the unlisted corporate bond is 8.52% FELEMARESF 2 ERFFEE8.52%(=
(2020: 8.52%) per annum. T-FF 1 852%) °
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%éﬁj%ﬁ% W%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA7&7TF117R)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 REUBMRRRAMNAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) FREFHARR KB IEE !
financial position presents:

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH
Provision for the year FREE (1,064) (1,746)
Balance of profits tax provision relating B FERNEREEGLR
to prior years - 35
(1,064) (1,711)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EMEH
Provision for the year FREE (231) (753)
Provisional tax paid EATE R 158 88
Exchange realignment b 34 SR B - 8
(73) (657)
(1,137) (2,368)
Represented by: Bl
Current tax recoverable AT Y (Bl BN EA TR 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —EENEB 631
Current tax payable P BN EATR I8
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEB (1,064) (2,342)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HEPEMRER (73) 657)
(1,137) (2,999)
(1,137) (2,368)
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e VI ERAR M

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised

(c)

154

The component of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

24 ZEMBRRERAKEH (E)

(b) ERPBELEHREARE

FARERE VR K T HERNET
BIBBEERE D REEHT

Depreciation

allowance
in excess of Other
the related temporary
depreciation differences Total
AR E W HAb & RF
wERE =5 et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FAET FHET
At 1 July 2019 RZZE—hFt+HA—H 273 600 873
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 1 8,/ (5t A\) Bz
(note 6(a) (Mf7E6()) 128 61) 67
Exchange realignment e 3, % - @1 21)
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 M -Z -ZFXA
=t+HERZZEZEF
+H—H 401 518 919
Credited to profit or loss (note 6(a)) st AfEz5 (Fit316(a)) 32) (358) (390)
Exchange realignment M 5 B - 52 52
At 30 June 2021 RNZZEZ—FXA
=+H 369 212 581

Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised

(c) RERELEBBEE 8BE

At 30 June 2021, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately
HK$3,237,000 (2020: HK$2,302,000) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits, against which the assets can be utilised,
will be available in any relevant tax jurisdiction or entity. Of the
total tax losses, HK$Nil (2020: HK$2,000) will expire within
5 years under the current tax legislation. Other temporary
differences are not material.
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The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, certain
subsidiaries of the Group and the eligible employees are each
required to make monthly mandatory contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes covering its full-time PRC
employees. The schemes are administered by the relevant
government authorities in the PRC. The Group and the PRC
employees are required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of HK$6,324,000 (2020: HK$5,877,000) for the year ended
30 June 2021 represents contributions payable to these plans by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

At 30 June 2021 and 2020, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under the
Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on termination
of their employment. The Group is only liable to make such
payments when the termination meets the required circumstances
specified in the Ordinance and the employees’ entitlement is not
covered by the aforesaid MPF Scheme. At 30 June 2021, the
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon do not exceed the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met. Consequently,
provision for long service payment of HK$4,389,000 (2020:
HK$4,067,000) is resulted and included in accruals as disclosed in
note 19.
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25 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

25 EREMHTBRIKRGTE
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ET B DGR - WAE R B EE
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REE-ZE-—FA=Z1+HLFE B
fRE B m R ERA 4B H 6,324,000 7T
—E T4 :5877,00087L)  EAK
EERAEIRRETE L R EN T2 5

BIEOHE -
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TRANSACTIONS

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attract, retain and reward the
eligible persons and to provide the eligible persons an incentive or
reward for their contribution to the Group and by enabling such
persons’ contribution to further advance the interests of the Group.
The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 28 May 2013 and shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the date of adoption, after which period no further options will be
offered or granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects with respect
to options granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include directors,
consultants or advisers and any other person who has contributed
to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a price
determined by the board of directors and shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date; (ii) the average of
the closing prices per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; or (jii) the nominal value of the share.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Persons
concerned for such period as determined by the board of directors,
being a date not later than ten business days after the offer date
by which the Eligible Persons must accept the offer or be deemed
to have declined it, provided that no such offer shall be open for
acceptance after the tenth anniversary of the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified
by the board of directors to the grantee which the board of directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall
not be more than ten years from the date of acceptance of the offer
(subject to the provisions for early termination in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme).
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TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance
of the offer shall be a nominal amount to be determined by the
board of directors.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of which
the share options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
the annual general meeting of the Company on 30 November 2018
at which the Company passed an ordinary resolution to refresh the
maximum number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all the share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together
with any options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company in issue shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage
as may be allowed under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number
of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted to each of Eligible Persons (including
both exercised and outstanding options under the Share Option
Scheme) in any twelve-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company. Where any further grant of
the share options to each of Eligible Persons would result in excess
of such limit shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders
at general meeting with each of such Eligible Persons and his
associates abstaining from voting.
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 26 UEEZELRHABERNARR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(@) Share capital

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 27 BEXKf#E
(a) BRA&
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEREZTRA
Number of
shares Amount
BRAEE X
'000 HK$'000
T FAET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares LB
At 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020, RZE—NFtA—H -
1 July 2020 and 30 June 2021 of —EZEFARA=1+A-
HK$0.01 each “E-FFLA—ABK
T —FA=1H
HRRE(EOC.01E T 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
Ordinary shares TR
At 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020, RZZE-h&EtHA—1"
1 July 2020 and 30 June 2021 of —E-FFAA=+H"
HK$0.01 each —E-EFLA—HK
—E-—FXA=+H
HREE(E0.01E T 540,000 5,400

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

158

)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall in the ordinary course of business.

Other reserve

The amount represents the difference between the
nominal amount of shares issued by the Company and
the aggregate amount of share capital of subsidiaries
acquired under common control pursuant to the
group reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 17
June 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRMHE
27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

27 EXRR#E(E)
(b) EEZHERAE(E)

(iij) Contribution surplus

The amount represents the amounts due to shareholders
capitalised before the listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange.

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with accounting policy set out in note 2.22.

(v) The PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required
to allocate at least 10% of its after-tax profit but before
dividend distribution to the statutory reserve until the
reserve has reached 50% of their registered capital. The
statutory reserve can only be used, upon approval by
the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or
increase capital. The appropriation for the year ended 30
June 2021 amounted to HK$224,000 (2020: HK$NIl).

(c) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access
to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments as to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of net debt,
which include bank loans, bond and lease liabilities, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital to monitor its capital structure on the basis of a gearing
ratio. The ratio is expressed by as a percentage of total debts
over the total equity. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged during the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020.

(iii) #AEE

ZeRIEE R AR AR5 E
2% BT GEM_F 77 B 8 75 4 7N ) JiE
TR ERFRIA °

(iv) EZFEE
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27 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

28

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

27 EXRKHE(E)

Capital management (continued) (c) EXREE(E)
The gearing ratios at 30 June 2021 and 2020 are as follows: R —FRZZZFF A=
HEBELENT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Total debts [Evy L 35,054 34,457
Equity attributable to owners of the RARIHEE AR
Company 199,339 178,282
Gearing ratio A& % 17.59% 19.33%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to RATRREAMFERRIITZING
externally imposed capital requirements. MENNEY & 2R TE PRl
Distributability of reserves (d) 7DIkf#E

At 30 June 2021, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company was
HK$101,602,000 (2020: HK$104,593,000).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

160

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade and other
receivables and loans and interest receivables. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions that have sound credit
ratings.

)

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had a certain
concentration of credit risk as 15% (2020: 22%) and
36% (2020: 41%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
take into account the customer’s past payment history
of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are
usually due on presentation of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

The directors have considered the credit risk of trade
receivables and noted that there was no actual loss nor
significant past due experience over the past 5 years,
including periods of unfavourable economic conditions.
The directors consider the aggregate risks arising from
the possibility of credit loss on trade receivables are not
significant and no loss allowance for credit losses were
made as at 30 June 2021 and 2020.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2T E-S¢REREERAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

162

)

(i)

Trade receivables (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

B (&)

(a) FERREE)

(M

0-30 days past due #HI0=30H

31-60 days past due #HAI31Z=60H
61-90 days past due #HI61 290 H
Over 90 days past due 1 BFREO0 A

Loans and interest receivables

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the end of the reporting period with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating;

—  external credit rating (as far as available); and

— actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2T EHEzSREREERAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
ECL model is as follows:

Category
il

Definition of category

EHRIzER

B (&)

(a) FERR(E)
(i) MEREFRFIE (&)
AEEBEREEBRENKE
MR -

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

BARBEEERRECEE

Stage 1

E—FEER

E =B

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired
upon origination.
EEK%%&ETHFI%@%“MHF
EERIELREERENRR

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired.
Qémﬁwiﬁgﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁm'ﬁﬁﬁ
HIREERERNRER

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

e HEENMT RRREREERK
THIFEN—AxZREN - AAHEAR
WAERHREERE

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loans and interest
receivables are set out in note 16.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted balance 23% and 78% (2020: 28% and 86%)
of the Group’s loans and interest receivables respectively

as at 30 June 2021.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held, if required. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

WA+ = (6 AN BE R N E A
SR MK A TEER S BB S ©

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.
WRKATEEEE (AR S E EFIEREF
H) -

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

WRKATEHEE - WHE BB EHREE
B SR AR (T FEBR AR () FE A B R 7 X
STEFBHA °

ERARERRKREFREMNEMELREE
[\ B0 — 2 TE B BRECHIFE16

R-ZBE-—FXA=1H " RRAERA
RAKRERAZERD BB A S B
BB T23%M78%(ZF —FF :
28% K 86%) °
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2T E-S¢REREERAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS &
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

164

(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued)

The Group rebutted the presumption of default under
ECL model for loans and interest receivables over 90
days past due based on good repayment records for
those loan borrowers having a continuous business with
the Group. They are assessed individually based on
their probability of default and exposure of default with
reference to historical credit loss experience, adjusted by
current and forward-looking factors.

Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest
receivables are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

(a) EEERERE)
(i) EREHEFIL ()

EREAREEFEETERZ
ERERABRCDEERL - A
EEDHBEIEIBE0RZE
WEZLFENBHREERE
EXTBEYN ZBR - MiEE
HENTRMERENRR @ &
2EBEEEBHELR IR
WAERAEEREZFABRBIEDL
&R °

PR E TR R M B sz #E
T

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—PRE BB BB wet
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FEL FEL FEL
At 1 July 2019 RZZE—NF+tH—H 124,557 - - 124,557
New originated EE 41,334 - - 41,334
Transfer B2 (49,869) 49,869 - -
Repaid during the year FREE (56,913) (3,823) - (60,736)
Exchange realignment P& 3 AR (86) - - (86)
At 30 June 2020 and RZZEZZFA=+H
1 July 2020 k—Z-FFt+H—H 59,023 46,046 - 105,069
New originated HELE 51,069 - - 51,069
Transfer B2 - (46,046) 46,046 -
Repaid during the year FREE (30,735) - - (30,735)
Exchange realignment B S 665 - - 665
At 30 June 2021 RZZZ—FA=+H 80,022 - 46,046 126,068
By class at 30 June 2021 R=-T=—FxA=1+H
®RERIE S
— Loans receivable —ERER 79,217 - 44,201 123,418
— Interest receivables —EYF B 805 - 1,845 2,650
80,022 - 46,046 126,068
Byclass at30 June 2020 R=-ZE-ZEXA=1+H
RERIE S
— Loans receivable —ERER 58,283 44,201 - 102,484
— Interest receivables — JEUH B, 740 1,845 - 2,585
59,023 46,046 - 105,069
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁjﬁﬁ% M{I--ELI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T31)7R )

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2T EHEzSREREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EEREB(E)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued) (i) EWREZRFE (E)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL HEBREEBEERE ZE
allowances is as follows: DT ¢
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-RER  EZRR  EZRER et

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
THT TAT THT TAT

At 1 July 2019 RZZ—hF+A—H - - - -
New originated HESE 961 - - 961
Transfer B (569) 569 - -

Impact on year ended ECLs of ~ FRERE 2 HEE 2R

e

exposures transferred between  BRUERFEHREEEE

stages during the year ZEE - 36,428 - 36,428
At 30 June 2020 and “E-TFANAZFAR

1 July 2020 —T-TF+A—H 392 36,997 - 37,389
New originated EE 162 - - 162
Repaid during the year FAEER (66) - - (66)
Transfer B - (36,997) 36,997 -

Impact on year ended ECLs of ~ FREHE 2 HER 2R
exposures transferred between ¥ RTEHIE G518

stages during the year B - - 9,049 9,049
At 30 June 2021 RZZE-—FA=1+H 488 - 46,046 46,534
By class at 30 June 2021 R-ZE--5XA=1H

RERES
— Loans receivable —EWER 488 - 44,201 44,689
— Interest receivables — EUFIE - - 1,845 1,845
488 - 46,046 46,534
By class at 30 June 2020 R-ZE-EEXA=1+H
RERE D
- Loans receivable — M ER 391 35,644 - 36,035
— Interest receivables —EWFE 1 1,353 - 1,354
392 36,997 - 37,389
No significant changes to estimation techniques or RIRERIR - Wk ST R s R R
assumptions were made during the reporting period. EREE) o
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2T E-S¢REREERAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(iiij) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, deposits and
other receivables. The Group accounts for its credit risk
by appropriately providing for ECLs on a timely basis. In
calculating the ECL rates, the Group considers historical
loss rates for each category of receivables and adjusts for
forward looking macroeconomic data.

At 30 June 2021 and 2020, the Group has assessed
that the ECL rate for those receivables is immaterial
under 12 months expected losses method. Thus, no loss
allowance for other financial assets at amortised costs
was recognised.

No significant changes to estimation techniques or
assumptions were made during the reporting period.

(b) Liquidity risk

166

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

B (&)

(a) FERERE)

(i) ZEBHAAT R B %M
BE
REBHERAE LM @mE
ERRERESRBRELEEY %
BRESRITER - R REME
UGB - REBIBEB RIS
Hﬂﬁgéﬂﬁéﬂﬁzﬁfj%ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬂ
HiZERK - RETEBEBEE
%E$%'$%E%§u@%
WHRIBHBABEE WA
e RS EER B % -

NZEZ—FRZZFZZTFN
A=+8 AEEZZ12E
RIEMEE LS Z SR INGRIA
MIEREEERXFIERTE
Ko EUL - 8 B 8RR
5Bk 2 HAth & R & E 1E A2
EERE -

RIS - 348 5L i A
BB EARS -

(b) REEZRR

AEEETMENKEERAEELY
ZREEE  BRESESEHRE
EARENEHREBKOFEE
Ko ARBZBRAEMERERD
BeHmH UEREERTEREH
whEmAGHERERE LWENER
RHRDESHE
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(c)

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

28 ¢WMIACSRAREER QY
E (&)

(b)

RBES R (E)

TREGAAEE SR EENREHR
ZHTEKNIHA - RAKRIEAR
ERE(BEERAE QMR (WF
B RRMERRZBINERAE L
MENZ) RAREA AN 2 &
FRERR -

2021 2020
—3-f 3
Total More than More than Total More than More than
contractual Within 1yearbut  2yearsbut contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than Camying  undiscounted 1 year or less than [ess than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2years 5years amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
ANRER 15/ 1EULR 25N LR BNFRER 15/ 185 HR 2N R
BEE RENELE EER 2R 5E0R BEE RenseE HEEL 2EIR SEMR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TER TEn Tin FER TER T TERL AL AR FEn
Trade payables BAEMRZE 14922 14922 15,496 15,49 15,49 - -
Accruals, deposts receved ESHER - RS

and other payables REMERTE 35,754 35,754 31,295 31,29 31,29 - -
Amount dustoadirector R —2EFHE 411 411 - - - - -
Bond &5 9,938 10,292 9,798 10,992 700 10,292 -
Lease liabiities HEaE 2,719 1,420 1,258 1,286 1,286 - -
Bank loans ROER 2307 2441 23,401 2447 23,447 - -
89,901 89,000 81,248 82,516 7222 10,292 -

Interest rate risk (c) R=m=ps

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from restricted
bank deposits, loans receivable, bank loans, bond and lease
liabilities. Deposits placed and borrowings issued at fixed rates
and variable rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out
below.

EHERERAR ik 2021

REE Y FREREERAFRIR
TR ERER - ROEK - 5
REERE  BERLIAEEZE
KRB BRI RIS AEEATA
TFEMERRRRSREFEAR -
AR B R 2 PR BRI
T -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 £RiTAz2rEKEER AT

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(M)

168

Interest rate profile

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

B (&)

(c) FI=mbx (&)
() FIELR
TRALAEENFEHRZ

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s net deposits at the end of the reporting period:

Fixed rate deposits/(borrowings)
Restricted bank deposits

Loans receivable

Bond

Lease liabiltties

Variable rate deposits/(borrowings)
Bank deposits and cash at bank
Bank loans

Total net deposits

EEER/ ()
SRHRTER
UER

B3

HERE

FEER/ (B
BiTRARETRE
BiTER

FERER
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GFRUFE 2 M=
2021 2020
“BI-F “2%F

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate

BRI BRI
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
TERL TEL
0.01%-1.00% 1,710 0.60%-1.60% 5,287
6.00%-24.00% 178,729 8.00%-24.00% 66,449
8.52% (9,938) 8.52% (9,793
5.00% (2,719) 5.13% (1,258)
67,782 60,680
0.02% 72,494 0.03% 65,485
2.36%-2.75% (22,397) 2.36%-2.75% (23,401)
50,097 42,084
117,879 102,764
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2021, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have no significant impact
to the Group’s profit or loss after tax and accumulated
losses.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit or loss after tax and
accumulated losses assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk for at the end of the
reporting period. The 50 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until the
end of the next annual reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2020.

(d) Currency risk

The Group’s business activities and its assets and liabilities
were denominated in HK$ and Renminbi (‘RMB”). The
management considers the Group is not exposed to significant
foreign currency risk as most sales, income, purchases and
expenses are denominated in the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

28 SRITEACESREKREERAF
B (&)

(c) FI=mEk(H)

(i) BBEETH

RZE-_—FXA=+H " &
TR IR A T RS0
BmATE B EH NS - B
$$Ifﬁf$ﬁ{§/mﬂ_}2§ﬂé\&§
S EEATE

R E S TR AL E R
ﬁ&%ﬂi%%&%%ﬁﬁz

BERE2E)  HEBEEFNEREFHE
m#%%%%&&am&%%
KAREHTEAEEMEE
{8 B A A FEF R
ZESMTIE o SOEES A
EEEEY T —EFE RS
RO R R e A BEE 2
?ﬁ CTE T RAREE
HEITOHT ©

(d) E¥ER

REBEEERHLEEERABNE
TTRARE (AR DEHE - IXA
HDHE - WA - BENRASAREH
Bzt EREHE - MEEERA
REBEWBEAZEAGERAR - A%
R S I SN SRR o A -

ﬁFQ%%%%H  WiHE %FF

FEIRERINE R o

HBRZERAMRDR S35 2021 169




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 ¢RIECSREABRTERAY
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Categories of financial instruments

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

B (&)

(e) EMITAEDE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Financial assets SHMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: IR SHRCATBR 2 RV E = -
— Trade receivables —E S EYGKRIA 70,393 53,479
— Deposits and other receivables — & R HEAEWEIE 3,615 8,660
— Loans and interest receivables —EWE LT B 79,534 67,680
— Restricted bank deposits — 2R HIRITFR 1,710 5,287
— Cash and cash equivalents —-REKIREZEY 72,494 65,485
227,746 200,591
Financial liabilities SEEE
Financial liabilities measured at REERAGTEZ 2B E
amortised cost:
— Trade payables —E S ENMNFHIE 15,496
- Accruals, deposits received and other ~ —EETEM 2R S &
payables H bt skIE 31,295
— Amount due to a director — R —REERE -
- Bond — &% 9,798
- Bank loans —RITER 23,401
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 1,258
81,248
() Fair values n ~¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments R EIRK A E AT AR 2 £ Rl
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different TAFRABERAR_Z-_—FR=-F
from their fair values at 30 June 2021 and 2020. ZEFARAAZTHZAFELEEXR
EE o
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%é/ﬁgfﬁﬁ% M{I-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA7&7TF117R)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EARBBAE RS KRR
AND BALANCES

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEBFZEEABHFMEEDNARAT
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in EE(ME7HHEE) RaREEAER
note 7 and senior management, is as follows: 15 - B -
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E_THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Directors =
Fees W 2,130
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind Fe o R REDEF 1,618
Discretionary bonuses B TEAT 95
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FORIRGT BB AR
retirement plan 37
3,880
Senior management SREEAS
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind Fre o R REYRER 132
Discretionary bonuses B TEAT 11
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FGRIRET BB AR
retirement plan 7
150
4,030
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial BRZEREVBEREEMIDOTHEES
statements, the Group did not have any material related party Hh REBREBE-ZE-_—FR=-FT=-F
transactions during the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020. FRNAZTHLFEYEETERBE S
Balances with related parties are disclosed in the Company’s HARAN 5 2 AR IR TR I FES0(@) P B AR
statement of financial position in note 30(a) and in note 20. A AR R R BT EE20 o
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30 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)
30 AAREMBER
(a) BBARRER

2021 2020
—B-—-F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB L& 18
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARMIEE -
18
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e FENRIEREMER
receivables KIE 286 288
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NGIE €] 169,990 164,508
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 844 29
171,120 164,825
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals fEstE A 1,127 1,163
Bond (e 9,938 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASHI B~ A FE 53,061 43,889
64,126 45,052
Net current assets REBEEFE 106,994 119,773
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABER 107,002 119,791
Non-current liabilities FkRBERS
Bond &% 9,798
NET ASSETS EEFE 107,002 109,993
Capital and reserves EXRf#EE
Share capital &N 5,400 5,400
Reserves = 101,602 104,593
TOTAL EQUITY A 107,002 109,993
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁjﬁﬁ% M{I--ELI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T31)7R )

30 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 30 ZAATRHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Movements in components of equity (b) R 2B E
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components RAFEARNT 2 (ER =5 &8
of equity during the year are as follows: BT
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
N B E ZHER by
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FEL
(note 27(b)(i))
(Mt EE27(0)0))
At 1 July 2019 R-ZE-NEtH—H 5,400 198,524 (93,288) 110,636

Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREE & 2 E B2

loss for the year - - (643) (643)
At 30 June 2020 and R-E-EEXA=THERK
1 July 2020 —E-Z2FtA—H 5,400 198,524 (93,931) 109,993

Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREE & 2 EEEEEE
loss for the year - - (2,991) (2,991)

At 30 June 2021 R-ZEZ—-FXA=1+H 5,400 108,524 (96,922) 107,002

HBRZERAMRDR S35 2021 173




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T AR R

31 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION 31

(a) Details of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2021 and (a)

174

2020

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

2021
ZBC-F
Proportion of
effective ownership
interest
BERERR
Place of Particulars of issued Bt
Name of company operations  and paid up capital Direct  Indirect
NEER BEfE CRORBRERARE Ei 58
Incorporatgi in the BV]:
RERERRRSEMAL :
Silver Marker Limited HongKong  US$1
EE Er
Bransfield Assets Limited HongKong  US$3 and HK$1,000,001
EE 3%70k1,000,001%7T
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REBEMRL :
Pollution & Protection HongKong  HK$18,557,800
Services Limited
EHREREARAR B 18,557,800/
Profit Management Limited HongKong ~ HK$100
RANERERAH e 1007
PPS Success Limited HongKong  HK$10,000
EREHERAR i 10,0007
Union Finance Limited HongKong ~ HK$10,000
EAMBERAR B 10,0007
Incorporated in the PRC:
AREERRL :
Shanghai PPS Sheng Mao The PRC RMB10,000,000
Environmental Services Limited
(Note (i) .
HEERARRIRHARLA  PHE ABH10,000,0007T
Ei()
Shenzhen Environmental Cleaning ~ The PRC RMB10,600,000
Senvices Limited (Note (i) ‘
AR RZREERA (M) PE AR#10,600,0007C
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

MEAR2ER

K=B=—FR=FB=BEAA
=+ BB AR

TREFATBZEAEERE &
EXRBENHNBRR 25 - BRE
AERRSN - BB B D YRR I AR

2020
—ZCEE
Proportion of
effective ownership
interest
EREAR
Emthl
Direct  Indirect

BER i3

Principal activity

IREH

100% - Investment holding

REER
- 100%  Investment holding

RARKR

- 100% Provision of environmental

and cLean\ing services
RERERERR
- 100%  Provision of money lending
Services

RRIERS

- 100% Trading of securities

BEES

- 100% Provision of money lending

services

FRHtIER

51% Provision of environmental

and cleaning services

RERRLB2RY

- 100% Provision of money lending

services

RRIERS
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31 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Details of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2021 and
2020 (continued)

Notes:

(i) The subsidiary is registered in the form of Chinese-foreign equity
joint ventures.

(i) The subsidiary is registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

Disposal of subsidiaries

On 6 October 2020, the Group disposed of entire equity
interests in China Chi Lik Limited (“China Chi Lik”) and
China Manufacturer Gate Limited (“Manufacturer Gate”)
to independent third parties (the “Purchasers”) for total
considerations of HK$1 and HK$1 respectively.

The liabilities of these subsidiaries disposed at completion date
comprise of:

31

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

MEAR2EM (&)

(a)

(b)

REIZB--FR-Z-ZFARA
=+ HHERRAFEE)
BT

0 EHEARTIUESNAEEED R

ZRABR -

) HMBARDUNEEACEZ T
RE -

HEHE AR

R-B-BETAKA  ARERE
TE=H(ERDHERERNER
AR EEN )RR EHIERA
AP 2 2 HIHE - BARER )
RIBTRIBT -

ZECHEMBARNTKAHZE
EEE

China Manufacturer

Chi Lik Gate Total
FEIE D [l st
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHETT FHET
Other payables H b FRIE (11) (11) (22)
Net liabilities disposed of HES®ETFE (1) (1) (22)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE&HM B A 7z Uz
Cash consideration HERE = = -
Net liabilities disposed of HEBEFE 11 11 22
11 11 22
Net cash inflow from disposal HEMBEATZES
of subsidiaries FNFEE
Cash consideration received BUR e R(E = — -
* The cash consideration is HK$1. * BeREAET -
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32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

176

Performance bonds

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

Guarantees on performance
bonds in respect of environmental
service contracts

PR

FRRIRARTS A K BAVRF

32 HREE
(a) BHRE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —=TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
13,729

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds
issued for due performance under several environmental
service contracts. The bank facilities of HK$13,644,000
(2020: HK$20,300,000) granted to the Group and bankers’
guarantees on performance bonds issued were pledged by:

() land and buildings of HK$49,900,000 (2020:
HK$47,800,000);

(i) restricted bank deposits of HK$1,710,000 (2020:
HK$5,287,000); and

(iiy  corporate guarantees of the Company and PPS Success
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary.

The effective period of performance bond is based on the
service period and the contract terms as specified in these
environmental service contracts. The performance bonds may
be claimed by customers if services rendered by the Group
fail to meet the standards as specified in these environmental
service contracts.

Litigations - Injury compensations

During the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, the Group
may from time to time be involved in litigations concerning
personal injuries by its employees or third party claimants.
In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not have any
significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations.
All potential claims made by these employees and third party
claimants not covered by insurance have been accounted for
in the balance of “provision for claims” under accruals, deposits
received and other payables (see note 19) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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(b)

NEEREZ BETE TRERBEEH
BEENBEORERHEETER - &
T AL B RIETTRVE 13,644,000/ 7T
— T F4F 1 20,300,000/ 7T) M E
BHELRE ZRITERATYSE
TSR -

() 13 AEF49,900,000/8 T( =
T T4 1 47,800,000/ 7T) :

(iy =2 PR )8R 77 1F 51,710,000 /&

TT(ZZE=—ZTF : 5287,000%
L) &

(i) ARATREEMNE QR EEEE
HEERARIZARIER -

EAVRE 2 B AR TR R AR 7% A &%
HETRERBANTANGOIM
E o MAEERHNIREREEEZ
FRBRBENTANRE - AIEP
A EHRBARE °

FEr—EERE

REBEZZ-—FRZZFZFF<A
=+ HIFE  AEEAENEEY
ABHEEERFEZFHEAELEH
EAZENHRD - EERAE  AEEH
Wi B Z SRR EEEERKA
BE - ZSFEENEZFHRARYE
RIFT A B R R AZRBAR I
BEARGAEMBHRAKRENER B
Wi & I H A A 5108 (LI FE19)
R REBE 265 -
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33 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

33 EEHhEr R FE

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
consolidated financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(@) Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate present value of these cash
flows. Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note
13.

(b) Loss allowances on financial assets measured at
amortised cost

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables by
assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Where the estimation is different from the previous estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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33 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 33 =£iH{&st R HIE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Income taxes

178

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions and interpretation
of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of transactions is assessed periodically to the effect
of all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deduction differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future profit will be available against which the unused tax
credit can be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.

Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2021

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new standard,
HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”, which are not yet effective for
the year ended 30 June 2021 and which have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements. These amendments include
the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?®

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Phase 2!

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 16~ Covid-19-related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021°

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use?
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract®

Annual Improvements HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle?

! Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2021.

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2022.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EEMBEREE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B ZZ-TF ZT-NF ZZ-N\F ZZ—+F
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FAT FET FHET FAET

RESULTS E o
Revenue from continuing REFERDRIEKEE

and discontinued ES e

operations 354,775 345,386 316,086 319,851 282,004
Profit/(loss) for the year FREH, (E8) 20,680 (35,817) 19,453 8,177) (13,488)
Attributable to: LA ARG -

Owners of the Company RAEER A 19,192 (36,719) 18,477 (8,289) (13,386)

Non-controlling interests IR 2 1,488 902 976 112 (102)

20,680 (35,817) 19,453 8,177) (13,488)

Dividends paid BERRE - - - -

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE
Total assets BEE 294,359 265,361 280,424 319,612 211,210
Total liabilities FEY=R (91,619) (85,166) (64,094)  (169,179) (59,785)

Total equity U S G 202,740 180,195 216,330 150,433 151,425
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